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Company Pro6le

New York State Electric & Gas Corporation
provides electricity to 745,000 customers and
natural gas to 139,000 customers living in
suburban and rural areas ofUpstate New York.
The service area covers 17,000 square miles,
about one-third of the state's land area.

The economy of our service area is supported
by light industry, agriculture, recreational
facilities and colleges and universities.

We generate electricity at seven coal-fired
power plants, several small hydroelectric plants
and one nuclear plant. The natural gas we
distribute is purchased from interstate pipeline
companies.

Our 4,500 employees are dedicated to delivering
energy economically, providing quality service
and building customer satisfaction.
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COVER:
Milliken Station's Unit 2,
which began commercial
operation in 1958, was the
19th most efficient generat-
ing unit in the country
according to the most recent
ranking by Electric Light &
Power magazine.
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Highlights

Sales

1988 1987 Percent Change

Gross operating revenues (thousands)
Kilowatt-hour sales to ultimate customers (millions)
Dekatherms ofgas delivered (thousands)

Common Stock Data

Earnings (loss) for common stock (thousands)
Dividends paid per share ofcommon stock
Book value per share ofcommon stock (end ofyear)
Market value per share of common stock (end ofyear)

Excluding 1987 write-offs and 1988 write-offadjustment:
Earnings for common stock (thousands)
Earnings per share of common stock
Return on average common stock equity

Customer Data

$1,340,169 $ 1,289,638
12,776 12,177
35,061 32,196

$ 157,975 $ (191,399)
$2.00 $2.64

$20.71 $ 19.85
$22.75 $20.88

$ 151,885 $ 177,390
$2.70 $3.21
13.2% 12.2%

4 I

5
9

(24)
4
9

(14)
(16)

8

Number ofcustomers (end ofyear)
Electric
Gas

Average annual use per residential customer":
Electric (kilowatt hours)
Gas (dekatherms)

745,000
139,000

7,791
125

731,000
136,000

7,569
120

*Computed using the weighted average number ofcustomers for the year.
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We are gratified to re-
port positive earnings
for 1988 followingour
1987 loss, which was
the first since NYSEG
became an independent
company in 1949.

We are making solid,
steady progress in
rebuilding financial
strength. E'arnings for
1988 were $158 mil-
lion, or $2.81 a share,
compared to the loss
of $ 191 million, or
$3.46 a share, in 1987.
The Company's equity
capital ratio increased
to over 35% by year
end from under 33% at
the end of 1987 and the
cash portion of our
earnings increased to
84%.

The highlight of 1988
was the commercial
operation of the Nine
Mile Point 2 nuclear
plant. While write-offs
related to that plant
temporarily weakened
the Company's finan-
cial condition, this ad-
dition of nuclear gener-
ating capacity will
benefit the Company
and its customers in
the long term.

We emphasized eff-
icienc at power plants
and throughout the
Company in 1988.
E<fflciency and gains in
employee productivity
kept operating costs
at about 1987 levels,
while 1988 energy
sales increased
markedly. Retail elec-
tric sales increased 5%
because of increasing
customer demand and
an unusually hot sum-
mer. Retail natural gas
sales increased 4%,
while transportation of
natural gas to our

e are making solid,
steady progress in rebuilding

financial strength.
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James Carrigg (left) and Allen Kintigh (right) congratulate
Goudey Generating Station Superintendent Kenneth Ross.

Goudey Station and the Auburn District earned our
President's Safety Award in 1988. Neither had a lost-time
accident.

larger industrial cus-
tomers increased 31%.
Transportation gas
now accounts for nearly
one-quarter of our total
natural gas load.

We have also im-
proved power plant
performance. NYSEG
generated a record
15,588,233 megawatt-
hours ofelectricity at
its coal-fired units in
1988 while decreasing
production costs per
kilowatt-hour and im-
proving heat rate, a
measure ofpower plant
efficiency. Our plants
were first in New York
State and sixth among
the nation's 100 largest
investor-owned utili-
ties for efficiency in the
most recent ranking by
L<'Iectric Light dz Power
magazine.

Somerset Station,
our 684-megawatt coal-
fired unit on Lake
Ontario, continues to
operate very reliably.
It is one of the cleanest
coal-fired plants in the
country and has been
available 94% of the
time since it was
brought on line in
1984. Its flue gas desul-
furization unit has
been available 100% of
the time. Somerset is
also the home of a ma-
jor research project
that tests various sul-
fur reduction technol-
ogies and studies ways
to optimize the perfor-
mance ofpollution con-
trol systems.

Despite increases in
demand, the Com-
pany's generating ca-
pacity, together with
firm purchases from
the New York Power
Authority, provides us



with some room to grow
without another large
power plant construc-
tion project in the near
future.

The Company's fu-
ture generation needs
willbe met through a
combination of efforts.
Improvements at exist-
ing plants, small natu-
ral gas-fired peaking
units, demand side
management and inde-
pendent power produc-
tion willall play a role
in meeting customer
demand.

There is substantial
interest in independent
power projects within
our service territory.
Little of our current
power supply comes
from private sources,
but private generation
could become a signifi-
cant source for our cus-
tomers ifplanned proj-
ects come to fruition.

In December 1988,
the Company filed its
proposal regarding
competitive bidding for
new capacity with the
Public Service Com-
mission. The Com-
pany's objective is to
use competitive bid-
ding to tap economical
independent power
sources which best
serve our customers
and investors.

In January 1989, the
Company and the Pub-
lic Service Commission
staff agreed on a rate
stabilization plan. The
plan provides for a 13%
return on equity with
no increase in base
electric and natural
gas rates through Jan-
uary 1991. This plan
willbenefit our cus-

tomers, contribute to
the economic stability
of the service territory
and allow the Company
to continue its finan-
cial recovery.

The quality ofour
customer service con-
tinues to be an impor-
tant element in our
operations. Through
innovative outreach
programs and a con-
certed effort by employ-
ees, we continue to
reduce customer com-
plaints to the Public
Service Commission.
Our complaint rate per
100,000 customers
ranks second among
the state's combination
electric and natural
gas utilities.

To improve customer
services, the Company
is continuing to work
closely with public
agencies. An example
is the energy packaging
program, a partnership
between the Company
and the New York
State Office for Aging.
Through this program,
we are working to-
gether to provide the
energy-related services
our elderly customers
need to live safely and
comfortably in their
homes.

Wells P. Allen, Jr.,
chairman and chief ex-
ecutive oAicer, retired
on May 13 after 39
years of service with
the Company. He will
remain a director and
chair the Board's Ex-
ecutive and Finance
Committee. Dedication,
hard work and success
were the benchmarks
ofMr. Allen's career.

His legacy is a strong
Company prepared to
serve its

customers'eeds

into the next
century. We wish him
well.

Upon Mr. Allen's
retirement, the Board
elected James A.
Carrigg chairman and
chief executive officer,
and Allen E<. Kintigh,
president and chief
operating officer.

WilliamD. Turner
resigned from the
Board in October 1988
to accept employment
in Florida. We thank
him for his contribu-
tions. John M. Keeler,
the managing partner
of the Binghamton law
firm Hinman, Howard
& Kattell, was elected
a director at the Feb-
ruary 10, 1989 Board
meeting.

All things consid-
ered, 1988 was a posi-
tive year for the Com-

pany, our customers,
employees and inves-
tors. Through the ef-
forts ofour employees,
we made excellent
progress toward restor-
ing the Company to fi-
nancial health and can
therefore consider re-
suming modest divi-
dend increases in the
future.

Continued employee
effort willalso help us
achieve our objectives
in 1989 —reducing the
average customer cost
per unit of electricity
and natural gas for all
retail sales and in-
creasing the value of
our stock by reaching
or exceeding the rate
of return on common
equity allowed by the
Public Service Com-
mission. Management
will focus on employee
development and creat-
ing an organizational
structure to enhance
eAiciency.

For the Board of Directors,

Allen E<. Kintigh
President and Chief Operating Officer

March 1, 1989

James A. Carrigg
Chairman and ChiefExecutive Officer
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e achieved increased
efficiency with fewer employees

than in 1987.

New York State Electric
8E Gas Corporation's
last two years contrast
sharply.

Financial and oper-
ating results for 1988
show the Company is
regaining financial
strength following the
$369 million after-tax
write-offprimarily as-
sociated with the Nine
Mile Point 2 nuclear
plant in 1987.

Several items con-
tributed to the im-
proved results in 1988.
Those items include:

~ Commercial opera-
tion of Nine Mile
Point 2.

~ Increased electric
and natural gas sales
and stable operating
costs.

~ An increase to 84%
in the cash portion of
our earnings.

Our steady financial
recovery is partly at-
tributable to manage-
ment's far-reaching
programs to reduce
operating costs and in-
crease the operating
eAiciency of the Com-
pany's workforce. We
achieved increased eAi-
ciency with fewer em-
ployees than in 1987,
even though we added
nearly 17,000 custom-

ers in 1988, the second
largest one-year in-
crease since NYSEG
became an independent
company in 1949.

Settlement Will
Keep Rates Stable

In January 1989, the
Company and the Pub-
lic Service Commission
staff agreed on a nego-

tiated settlement that
willkeep our base
rates at current levels
through January 1991.
By then, our base elec-
tric rates willhave
been stable for almost
five years and our base
natural gas rates will
have been stable for
almost six years. This
is good for our cus-
tomers, the service ter-

Dividend & Earnings
Dollars per Share

2.70

336
3A6 (3 46)

3.'21i

2.61

2.81

1.72

132
1,91

1979 1980 1981 1982 1983, 1984

ODIvIDENDs OEARNINGs

1986 1986 1987 1988

*Excluding the eifects of the write-ofrs of Nine Mile Point 2 and
Jamesport disallowed costs and the accounting change for income
taxes.

*'Excluding the eirect of an adjustment, to the 1987 Nine Mile Point 2
write oK

ritory economy and the
Company.

The settlement is
based on an allowed re-
turn on equity of 13%.
Ifwe exceed the al-
lowed return, the excess
willbe shared equally
between stockholders
and customers.

Another bright spot
in our financial picture
results from changes
in the Company's debt
structure. Refunding
high-coupon bonds has
cut annual interest
costs by over $7 mil-
lion.

Another tax-exempt
financing for pollution
control equipment at
Nine Mile Point 2 was
completed in Decem-
ber. Our construction
program in 1989 is ex-
pected to be financed
primarily with internal
funds and short-term
borrowing.

High-coupon debt
willbe further reduced
in 1989 through re-
fundings with the pro-
ceeds from the sale of
undivided percentage
interests in certain of
our accounts receivable
from customers. These
refundings are expected
to save our customers
more than $2 million
in 1989.



One of the many uses of computer-aided design and
drafting equipment is calculating coal inventories at
power plants. Aerial photos of coal piles are transferred
to the computer as three-dimensional diagrams. The
equipment then calculates the volume of coal in a fraction
of the time manual surveying and calculations take.
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n the most recent ranking
by Electric Light&Power magazine,

our power plants were the sixth
most efficient in the nation.

Power Plant Efficiency

10~2
103&3

10,701
10.6i 0

10452

We have successfully burned
wood waste mixed with coal
at Jennison Generating
Station. Innovation such as
this willallow us to generate
electricity even more
efficiently.

Power Plant
Efficiency Sixth
in Nation

In the most recent
ranking by L<'lectric
Light & Power maga-
zine, our power plants
were the sixth most
efficient in the nation
and, for the third year
in a row, the most effi-
cient in New York
State. The magazine
ranks power plant effi-
ciency among the na-
tion's 100 largest in-
vestor-owned utilities.
For the fourth straight
year, our national rank-
ing improved. This is
especially noteworthy
since one-third of our
coal-fired generating

10~2

10,093

9,959
9PSV

capacity is in its fourth
or fifthdecade of
service.

The performance of
three power plants in
particular improved
our ranking. At Homer
City Generating Sta-
tion, efficiency has im-
proved by about 3%
since the end of 1986.
MillikenStation's
Unit 2 ranked 19th in
the nation in efficiency,
and Somerset Station
continued to earn high
marks for availability
and efficiency.

On-going capital im-
provements to ensure
efficiency and protect
the environment, cou-
pled with aggressive
coal purchasing efforts
using sophisticated
computer programs,
have resulted in our
lowest system produc-
tion costs since 1981.

We expect to improve
efficiency further
through innovation.
During 1988, we con-
ducted several test
burns of coals not pre-
viously used at our
plants and successfully

burned wood waste
mixed with coal at Jen-
nison Station in an ef-
fort to improve the ef-
ficiency of generation.
We have taken a lead-
ership role in develop-
ing power plant control
systems and are con-
tinuing to evaluate new
power plant technol-
ogies.

We are preparing to
meet the challenges
from possible acid rain
legislation through the
planned installation of
advanced, low-nitrogen
oxide burners at Homer
City Station. We also
host the Electric Power
Research Institute's
High Sulfur Test Cen-
ter at Somerset Station
and its Coal Quality
Development Center at
Homer City.

More innovation at
Homer City is protect-
ing the environment
and saving money. A
$ 1.2 million man-made
wetland treats coal and
ash leachate naturally
at about half of the cost
of a transfer system to
a wastewater treat-
ment facility.

1919 19S0 19S1 19S2 1983 1994 1985 1986 1987 1988

0 BTU'S PER KWH GENERATED



jP

, .D
0

In addition to allowing Homer City Generating Station
to meet emission requirements, its coal cleaning facility
improves plant operation because clean coal burns more
efficiently. Homer City Station set a new net generation
record of 11,881,000 megawatt-hours in 1988.



e are striving to
increase the efficient use of natural
gas within our existing service area

and to seek new franchises.

We'e Ready to Meet
Increasing Demand
for Electricity

On August 3, during
one of the hottest sum-
mers on record, we set
a new record summer
peak demand of 2,168
megawatts (mw). This
was 5.5% above the
1987 summer peak.
On December 12, we
set a new record winter
peak demand of 2,574
mw. This was a 1.7%
increase over the pre-
vious mark.

We were well pre-
pared to meet these
record demands. Our
generating capability,
together with firm pur-

chases from the New
York Power Authority,
is 3,183 mw.

A decade ago this
record demand would
have meant planning
for additional base-load
generating capacity.
Although this remains
an option, we plan to
use other efficient
methods to meet grow-
ing demand. Increased
marketing emphasis
willcenter on sales of
electricity at night
when generating ca-
pacity is under-utilized.
Success here willfur-
ther improve power
plant efficiency. In ad-
dition, we willconsider
new power plant tech-

Electric Peak Loads
Winter Capability Period thlegawatta)

2&30

2170
2193

2173

1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1935 1986 1987 1988 1989

nologies and power
from independent pro-
ducers.

Selective Marketing:
A Win-Win Situation

Selective marketing of
electricity and natural
gas benefits both our
customers and the
Company. Customers
receive substantial re-
bates on selected heat-
ing and cooling equip-
ment and the assurance
that this equipment
willserve them well at
reasonable operating
costs. An important ele-
ment in this program
is a strong relationship
with equipment whole-
salers and retailers. As
a result of successful
selective marketing,
we can use our power
plants more efficiently
and increase natural
gas sales.

In our electric opera-
tions, emphasis is on
shifting daytime use to
the nighttime primar-
ily through marketing
the concepts of electric
thermal storage heat-
ing and controlled elec-
tric water heating. Re-
bates, combined with
our half-price night-
time electric rates, and
the greater efficiency of
the equipment itself

make both options at-
tractive to customers.
In 1988 alone, residen-
tial, commercial and
industrial customers
added over 60 million
kilowatt-hours (kwh)
to nighttime use. To
improve our electric
demand profile further,
we are encouraging the
use of high-efficiency
air conditioners and
heat pumps.

Agriculture, a $ 12
billion a year business
in New York State, also
provides an oppor-
tunity for our selective
marketing efforts. In
1988, 126 farms in-
stalled controlled elec-
tric water heating
equipment, adding 1.4
millionkwh to night-
time use. L<lectric ther-
mal storage heating
was installed at eight
farms on a test basis.
In conjunction with
Cornell University, we
are designing agricul-
tural cooling equip-
ment that uses cold
winter air instead of a
refrigeration unit.

In our natural gas
operations, we are
striving to increase the
efficient use ofnatural
gas within our existing
franchise area and to
seek new franchises. In
1988, over 3,000 new



Hundreds of customers who have received NYSEG rebates
on efficient heating or cooling equipment responded
to an inquiry regarding interest in participating in our1989
advertising program. Many who responded willbe
featured in newspaper, radio and television advertising.
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three-year marketing and
advertising campaign willpromote

the service territory.

customers were added
to our system, about
half of them from the
new franchises, and
total deliveries in-
creased by 2,865,000
dekatherms.

Economic
Development Vital
to Growth

Our nationally recog-
nized economic devel-
opment department,
which has assisted over
1,000 businesses, will
broaden its efforts in
1989, using its 1988
activities as a founda-
tion.

Those 1988 activities
included a major mar-

ket analysis of our ser-
vice area to determine
the feasibility of devel-
oping shell industrial
buildings to attract
new business. We will
market the concept of
constructing shell
buildings in some com-
munities. A new indus-
trial customer data
base willallow us to
communicate the ad-
vantages of expansion
in our service area to
existing customers, A
three-year marketing
and advertising cam-
paign developed in 1988
willpromote the ser-
vice territory, while
positioning the depart-
ment as a single source

for assisting businesses
that are considering
New York State for ex-
pansion or relocation.

An extensive direct
mail and personal con-
tact program will
continue in the U.S.,
Canada and overseas.

We'e Committed to
Research and
Development

Research and develop-
ment encompasses
projects as diverse as
investigating ways to
transmit more electric-
ity over existing lines
and how to promote
electric thermal stor-
age heating to reduce

The Revenue Dollar-1988
89% Electricity
11% Gas

100%

Where it came from:
Residential

44'ommercial

22'ndustrial

160

L

Street Lighting
and Other 124 I

Utilities 6g

Where it went:

Taxes 16'

Interest 14<

l81k;~=.':)HH.—'""::"- "'""'
<QR lL"' ~~I Depreciation log

r
I~ '551 Wages and Benefits log

%85~
sc[y(gggg~s Dividends-Common

Gas and Electricity
Purchased 7e

Retained Earnings 3C

daytime customer de-
mand. The overall aim
is to deliver energy and
related services more
economically. In 1987,
we ranked fourth in
the nation among in-
vestor-owned utilities
for research funding as
a percent of revenues
and 14th in total ex-
penditures. Total ex-
penditures reached
$11.7 million in 1988
and are projected to be
$12.5 million in 1989.

Annual savings asso-
ciated with the pro-
gram exceed $26 mil-
lion. Benefits are
documented and re-
ported each year to the
Public Service Com-
mission.

Company par ticipa-
tion in the Empire
State Electric Energy
Research Corporation,
Electric Power Re-
search Institute, New
York State Energy Re-
search and Develop-
ment Authority and
New York Gas Group
provides an informa-
tion base and cofunding
ofresearch.

10



Roses flourish under special greenhouse lighting at
Elmira Floral Products, Inc. Re are offering rebates on
efficient greenhouse and agricultural lighting as part of
our 1989 selective marketing program.



he new energy control system
willhelp ensure the reliable and
economic delivery of electricity

and natural gas into the
21st century.

We'e Working
More Efficiently

Three employees re-
ceived recognition from
the Electric Power Re-
search Institute in 1988
for being the first to
implement money-sav-
ing new technologies.
Another employee re-
ceived the largest
Ideas, Inc. award ever
for suggesting a con-
struction management
system change that
willsave over $30,000
a year. Ideas, Inc. is a
Company-wide pro-
gram to solicit cost-
and labor-saving ideas.

Electricity Sources —1988

Hydro 13%

Other 1%

Nuclear 3%

Hydro 1%

Coal 82%

Q Generated 86%

Purchased 14%

Other 1988 activities
that helped us to work
more efficiently in-
clude:

~ Statewide implemen-
tation and use of
hand-held electronic
meter reading de-
vices. Results show
fewer meter reading
errors, faster updat-
ing ofcustomer ac-
counts and fewer
customer calls.

~ Revision ofour storm
response plan. This
willallow more effi-
cient response to cus-
tomer calls, earlier
mobilization of re-
pair crews and bet-
ter communications
with the media.

~ Continuous updating
ofcomputer hard-
ware and software
technology to allow
employees to work as
efficiently as pos-
sible.

~ Several material
utilization activities
including the evalu-
ation of bar-coding
to improve material
handling and inven-
tory accuracy, evalu-
ation of side-loading
tractor trailers to
improve shipping ef-
ficiency and devel-
opment of a computer
model to optimize
spare parts inventory
for power plants.

Attention to accident
prevention also helps
us work more effi-
ciently. Even though
we have had an envi-
able record in years
past, we are redoubling
our efforts to promote
safety. Strong mana-
gerial involvement, a
continued focus on
safety procedures and
more information for
employees, contractors
and customers willen-
sure that safety re-
mains in the forefront.

New Facilities Help
Improve Customer
Service

Appropriate facilities
enable us to serve our
customers with maxi-
mum eAiciency.

Construction of the
new Energy Control
Center in Binghamton
was completed in No-
vember, seven months
ahead of schedule and"'nder budget. In addi-
tion to employees from
several departments,
the facilitywillhouse
an entirely new and
modern energy control
system. The new sys-
tem, scheduled for de-
livery in 1990, willhelp
ensure the reliable and
economic delivery of
electricity and natural
gas to customers into
the 21st century.

New facilities in
Perry and Brewster
also opened in 1988
An addition to the
Ithaca Corporate Office
to house a computer
center is under con-
struction, and a new
facility in Mechanic-
ville willbe started in
the summer of 1989.

12



Hundreds of employees in Binghamton have pitched in to
recycle over 70 cubic yards of paper. The project was
sparked by employee concerns over solid waste disposal
in Broome County.



he Company was the force
behind two significant community

activities in 1988.

Outreach Programs
Grow

Our Consumer Panel,
in operation since 1981,
is the cornerstone of
our consumer outreach
program. This advisory
panel, composed of cus-
tomers from across the
state, discusses con-
cerns with manage-
ment and serves as a
sounding board for new
programs. One of the
Panel's highlights in
1988 was a meeting in
November with Public
Service Commission
Chairman Peter Brad-
ford.

Innovative outreach
programs in 1988 in-
cluded a statewide com-
munication service for
deaf customers who
wish to contact us. The
Company and the New
York State Office for
Aging began an energy
packaging program to
ensure energy-related
services for elderly
customers who live in
their own homes.

In March, Project
SHARE, the fund for
elderly or disabled cus-
tomers who face energy
emergencies, exceeded
$ 1 million in grants.

Meanwhile our edu-
cational services pro-

4)

Z

~r

gram continued an
eight-year upward
trend in circulation of
films and computer
son;ware to schools. An
energy education cen-
ter for students estab-
lished in our Auburn
office means we now
have five such centers
across the state.

Stockholder Activity
Increases

A direct deposit pro-
gram for common stock
dividend payments
started and more stock-
holders used our toll-
free telephone number
in 1988. Stockholders
invested about $ 22 mil-
lion through the divi-
dend reinvestment and
stock purchase plan.

Reinvested dividends
and optional cash pay-
ments are used to sup-
port our construction
and refunding pro-
grams.

The Company and
Its Employees
Are Active in Their
Communities

Employees are active
in the communities in
which they live and
work. Hundreds volun-
teered for United Way
campaigns, municipal
governments, fire
departments and ser-
vice clubs. In 1988, we
paid $71 million in
local property taxes to
help enhance those
communities.

I41

The Consumer Panel has dealt with a wide range of
issues including customer assistance programs and

billing policies.

The Company's
Speakers Club marked
its 25th Anniversary
ofoffering speakers to
community organiza-
tions free of charge.
The 12 Speakers Clubs
across the state made
more than 2,400 pre-
sentations in 1988, a
new record.

The Company was
the force behind two
significant community
activities in 1988.

An investigation of
sites where gas was
manufactured by
NYSEG or its prede-
cessor companies that
began in 1985 has
grown to 16 locations.
Gas manufacturing
began at some of these
sites in the late-1800s
and continued at some
until the 1950s. We are
committed to a thbr-
ough study of each site
to determine whether
or not byproducts re-
main.

A community con-
cern is also at the root
of the Binghamton
paper recycling project.
Community debate
over construction of a
resource recovery plant
and Company employee
concerns about landfill
space sparked the re-
cycling idea last spring.
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The Company joined with the Broome County Department
of Social Services and Volunteers of America to develop
WEB (Weatherization and Employment in Broome). The
program provides training for long-term public assistance
recipients who help weatherize low-income homes.



New York State Electric & Gas Corporation and Subsidiary

Consolidated Balance Sheet
At December 31 1988 1987

Assets
Utilityplant, at original cost (Note 1)

Electric (Note 10)
Gas
Common

$4,038,092
186,178
110,G82

$3,128,188
169,993
87,114

(Thousands ofDollars)

Less accumulated de reciation
Net utilityplant in service

Construction work in ro ress (Note 10)

Other Pro ert and Investments
Current Assets

Cash and temporary cash investments
Special deposits
Accounts receivable (Notes 1 and 8)
Accounts receivable —Unfunded future federal income taxes (Note 3)
Accounts receivable —Nine Mile Point Unit No. 2 Settlement Inducement (Note 10)
Fuel, at average cost
Materials and supplies, at average cost
Prepayments
Accumulated deferred federal income tax benefits (Note 3)

Deferred Charges
Abandoned project costs (Note 11)
Somerset Station phase in costs (Note 1)
Unamortized debt expense (Note 1)
Accumulated deferred federal income tax benefits (Note 3)
Unfunded future federal income taxes (Note 3)
Other

Capitalization and Liabilities
Capitalization (Notes 4-7)

Capital stock and retained earnings
I'referred stock redeemable solel at the o tion of the Com an
Preferred stock sub'ect to mandator redem tion re uirements
Common stock equity

Common stock
Capital in excess ofpar value
Retained earnin s

Lon -term debt

Current Liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt and preferred stock
Commercial paper (Note 7)
Accounts payable
Dividends payable on preferred stock
Pensions accrued (Note 2)
Taxes accrued
Interest accrued
Unfunded future federal income taxes (Note 3)
Accumulated deferred federal income taxes (Note 3)
Other

Deferred Credits
Accumulated deferred investment tax credit (Note 3)
Excess deferred federal income taxes (Note 3)
Unbilled utilityrevenue (Note 1)
Other

Accumulated Deferred Federal Income Taxes (Note 3)
Unfunded future federal income taxes
Other

Commitments and Contin encies (Notes 9, 10 and 12)

4,334,952
95G,415

3,378,537
73,973

3,452,510
G2,223

4,700
10G,848
116,748

19 145

47,478
47,878
21,95G
27,782

392,535

G7,717
63,8Gl
72,255

106,147
414,604

61,425
78G,009

$4,G93,277

$ 1GO 500
13 500

378,004
557,403
238,621

1,174,028
1,824,148
3,172,17G

1G5,778
77,400
G7,32G

3,320
7,'222

11,133
61,080
19,145
11,829
47,440

471,G73

125,539
73)303

101,368
82,806

383,016

414,604
251,808
GG6,412

$4,693,277

3,385,295
855,198

2,530,097
776,965

3,307,062
65,561

4,831
3,901

113,718
18,884
52,200
61,875
45,639
22,769
17,510

341,327

74,087
71,077
63,700

112,994
429,625

21,911
773,394

$4,487,344

$ 160,500
18,150

371,557
542,063
192,898

1,106,518
2,055,224
3,340,392

41,124
16,000
59,852

3,477
11,353

3',233
59,498
18,884
7,643

29,327
250,391

128,091
88,986

52,130
269,207

429,625
197,729
627,354

$4,487,344

The accompanying notes shown on pages 19 through 28 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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New York State E'lectric & Gas Corporation and Subsidiary

'onsolidated Statement of Income
Years Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986
Operating Revenues

Electric
Gas

(Thousands ofDollars)
$1,191,806 $ 1,136,799 $ 1,098,089

148,363 152,839 179,195

Operating Expenses
Operation —fuel (Note 1)—other
Electricity purchased
Gas purchased (Note 1)
Maintenance
Depreciation (Note 1)
Federal income tax recorded (Note 3)
Other taxes (Note 14)

Operating Income
Other Income and Deductions

Allowance for other funds used during construction (Note 1)
Non-cash return —utilityplant in service (Note 1)—abandoned projects (Notes 1 and ll)
Federal income tax credit recorded (Note 3)
Income tax benefits from AF<DC and non-cash return (Note 3)
Disallowed project costs (Notes 10 and 11)
Tax effect of disallowed project costs recorded (Notes 3, 10 and 11)
Other—net

Income Before Interest Charges
Interest C barges

Interest on long-term debt
Other interest
Allowance for borrowed funds used durin construction (Note 1)

Interest charges —net
Income Before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes

Cumulative effect for years prior to 1987 ofaccounting change for
disallowed project costs (less applicable taxes of $95,434) (Note 10)

Cumulativeeffectfor ears riorto1987ofaccountin chan eforincome taxes(Note 3)
Net Income (Loss)
Preferred Stock Dividends
Earnings (Loss) for Common Stock
Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Before cumulative effect of accounting changes
Cumulative effect for years prior to 1987 ofaccounting change for:

Disallowed costs
Income taxes

Earnings (Loss) per share
Proforma Earnings —With 1987 Accounting Changes Applied Retroactively

Earnings for common stock
Earnings per share

Average Number of Shares Outstanding

1,340,169

253,32G
214)541

19,432
82,822
90,097

134,037
81,689

136,706
1,012,650

327,519

10,961

3,081
4,869

6,827
(737)

3,931
356,451

187)304
12,426

(14,746)
184,984
171,4G7

171,4G7
13,492

$ 157,975

2.81

$ 2.81

$ 157,975
$2.81

56,238,565

1,289,638

249,520
195,204
29,638
90,974
93,274

110,679
110,355
128,776

1,008,420
281,218

55,777

5,039
4,699

(151,648)
12,929

(672)
207,342

195,264
7,057

(47,312)
155,009
52,333

(210,914)
(19,156)

(177,737)
13,662

$ (191,399)

$ .70

(3.81)
(.35)

$ (3.46)

$38,671
$ .70

55,317,858

1,277 284

238,371
182,710
29,302

111,147
88,486

100,796
122,987
122,400
996,199
281,085

63,168
9,868
5,906
4,648

30,108

39
394,822

187,238
12,020

(32,930)
166,328
228,494

228,494
20,104

$ 208,390

$ 3.86

$ 3.86

$96,604
$ 1.79

54,013,868

Consolidated Statement ofRetained Earnings
Years Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986

Balance, beginning ofyear
Add net income (loss)

(Thousands ofDollars)
$192,898 $534,190 $469,661

171,467 (177,737) 228,494

Deduct cash dividends
Preferred stock (at serial rates)

Redeemable solely at the option of the Company
Subject to mandatory redemption requirements

Common stock ($2.00, $2.64, and $2.60 er share in 1988, 1987 and 1986, res ectivel )

Deduct remium aid on referred stock redem tion (Note 5)
Balance, end of year

3G4,365

11,608
1,884

112,252
125,744

$238,G21

356,453

11,355
2,307

145,794
159,456

4,099
$ 192,898

698,155

11,338
8,766

140,432
160,536

3,429
$534,190

The accompanying notes shown on pages 19 through 28 are an integral part'of the financial statements.
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New York State Electric & Gas Corporation and Subsidiary

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
Years Ended December 31 1988 1987 1986

Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Operating Activities:

Customer receipts
Proceeds from the sale ofaccounts receivable (Note 8)
Nine Mile Point Unit No. 2 settlement inducement
Fuel, purchased power and gas
Payroll and fringe benefits
Taxes —federal, state and local
Interest payments
Other o eratin ex enses

$ 1,389,239
103,400
52,200

(325,247)
(147,925)
(170,0G4)
(191,892)
(227,611)

$ 1,35G,680

(350,974)
(145,714)
(168,864)
(193,144)
(195,363)

$1,297,140

(350,032)
(129,497)
(149,767)
(183,537)
(203,137)

(Thousands ofDollars)

Net cash rovided b o eratin activities
Investing Activities:

Utilityplant construction expenditures
Less: Allowance for funds used durin construction (AFDC) (Note 1)

Net cash used in investin activities
Financing Activities:

Proceeds from new debt issues:
First mortgage bonds
Long-term notes payable

Sale of common stock
Debt repayments:

First mortgage bonds and preferred stock
Long-term notes payable

Commercial paper —net
Dividends on referred and common stock

Net cash used in financin activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash and Cash'Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Be innin of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

482,100

(228,223)
21,575

(20G,G48)

100,000
34,000
21,787

(2G3,279)
(800)

G1,400
(125,744)
(172,63G)
102,81G

8,732
$ 111,548

302,621

(270,045)
85,128

(184,917)

100,000
65,000
43,044

(72,550)
(5,500)

(94,600)
(159,456)
(124,062)

(6,358)
15,090

$ 8,732

281,170

(326,990)
96,098

(230,892)

275,000

1,093

(158,045)
(6,200)
(7,700)

(160,536)
(56,388)

(G,110)
21,200

$ 15,090

Reconciliation ofNet Income to Net Cash provided by Operating Activities:
Net Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
AFDC and other non-cash return (Note 1)
Depreciation
Amortization of deferred charges
Fuel and purchased gas costs deferred
Interchange profits deferred —net
Disallowed project costs (Notes 10 and 11)
Tax effect of disallowed project costs recorded (Notes 3, 10 and 11)
Excess revenues
Federal income tax deferred —net (Note 3)
Investment tax credit deferred —net (Note 3)
Loss on reacquisition ofdebt
Other—net

Changes In Certain Current Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable —Nine Mile Point Unit No. 2 settlement inducement
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Dividends payable
Interest and taxes payable

(28,788)
134,037

18,763
(9,214)
8,488

(6,827)
'737

(17,G64)
49,889
(2,552)

(12,405)
(8,4G5)

98,337
52,200

813
12,158
11,801

(157)
9,482

(108,128)
110,679

13,847
2,359

(8)
457,996
(89,207)
24,030
49,925
21,655

8,894

12,363

4,777
(13,959)

(6,965)
(1,039)
(6,861)

(111,872)
100,796
25,188

1,332
(7,412)

38,538
30,998
(3,458)
(5,357)

(9,544)

(7,092)
3,228

(13,598)
(1,574)
12,503

$ 171,467 $ (177,737) $ 228,494

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 482,100 $ 302,621 $ 281,170

Investing and Financing Activities not affecting Cash:
The Company issued Common Stock totaling $5,519,000 and $723,000 in 1987 and 1986, respectively, under employee stock
plans.
Capital leases increased $8,260,000, $4,890,000, and $2,273,000 in 1988, 1987 and 1986, respectively.

Disclosure of Accounting Policy:
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. This
includes cash, temporary cash investments, and special deposits on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The accompanying notes shown on pages 19 through 28 are an integral part of the financial statements.
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„Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Significant Accounting Policies
a. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the Com-
pany's wholly-owned subsidiary, Somerset Railroad Cor-
poration (SRC), which owns rail facilities for transport
of coal and other. supplies to the Somerset Generating
Station. Allsignificant intercompany balances and trans-
actions are eliminated in consolidation.

b. Accounting records
The Company maintains its accounting records in con-
formity with the uniform system of accounts prescribed
by the F<ederal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
and the Public Service Commission of the State of New
York (PSC).

c. Utilityplant
Cost ofcurrent repairs and minor replacements is charged
to appropriate operating expense and clearing accounts;
cost of renewals and betterments, including indirect
costs, is capitalized. Original cost of utilityplant retired
or otherwise disposed of and the cost of removal less sal-
vage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

d. Allowance for funds used during construction
(AFDC) and other non-cash return

AFDC is a non-cash return which is shown in the Con-
solidated Statement of Income as Allowance for other
funds used during construction and Allowance for bor-
rowed funds used during construction. AF<DC rates are
determined according to FERC regulations.

As a result of the adoption in 1987 of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 96, Accounting for
Income Taxes (See Note 3), for income statement pur-
poses the Company used before tax AF<DC rates of 10.3%.
and 11.7% in 1988 and 1987, respectively. The Company,
however, is required, for ratemaking purposes, to capital-
ize AF<DC on Nine Mile Point nuclear generating unit
No. 2 (NMP2) and non-cash return on abandoned project
costs using net-of-tax rates. Therefore, Allowance for
borrowed funds used during construction and Non-cash
return —abandoned projects on the Consolidated Income
Statement includes approximately $ 5 million and $ 19
million of imputed tax benefits for 1988 and 1987, re-
spectively. The related deferred taxes are included in
Federal income tax expense recorded. (See Note 3.)

The Company used a net-of-tax rate of 9.4% for the
NMP2 and 12.1% (before tax) for projects other than
NMP2 during 1986.

Non-cash return was accrued on certain unamortized
abandoned project costs. (See Note 11.)

e. Revenue
In 1988, the Company began accruing electric and gas
revenues on its Consolidated Balance Sheet for services
provided but not billed. Previously, revenues were re-

corded on the basis of customer billings. This accounting
is consistent with the Tax Reform Act of 1986 (See Note
3) and willbetter match revenues and expenses once the
PSC recognizes unbilled revenues for ratemaking pur-
poses. At December 31, 1988, approximately $ 101 mil-
lion ofunbilled revenues have been accrued and included
in Accounts receivable on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.

The PSC has directed the Company to defer the income
statement recognition of unbilled revenues. These rev-
enues, which are included in Unbilled utility revenues
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, will be amortized to
the Consolidated Statement of Income upon their recog-
nition for ratemaking purposes. The Company believes
the PSC will begin recognizing unbilled revenues for
ratemaking purposes in 1990.

f. Federal income taxes (See Note 3.)
The Company files a consolidated federal income tax
return with its wholly-owned subsidiary, SRC.

Deferred income taxes are provided on all temporary
differences between book and taxable income.

Investment tax credit, which reduces federal incorhe
tax currently payable, is deferred and amortized over the
lives of the applicable property.

g. Deferred charges (See Notes 3 and 11.)
The Company defers certain fuel and purchased gas costs
which are subsequently reflected in billings to customers
through adjustment clauses in rates.

Debt expense is deferred and amortized ratably over
the lives of the related issues. Unamortized debt expense
also includes premiums paid on reacquisitions of first
mortgage bonds totaling approximately $49 millionwhich
is being amortized ratably over periods ranging from two
to thirty years.

Somerset Station phase in costs represent a non-cash
return similar to AFDC which was recorded during the
three year phase in of Somerset plant costs. These costs
are being recovered over a ten year period beginning in
1988.

h. Depreciation
Depreciation expense is determined using straight-line
rates, based on average service lives, applied to the orig-
inal cost, by groups of depreciable property in service.
Depreciation accruals were equivalent to 3.4%, 3.1% and
3.1% of average depreciable property for 1988, 1987 and
1986, respectively.

i. Amortization of nuclear fuel
The cost of nuclear fuel associated with the Company's
18% share ofNMP2 is being amortized on the basis of the
quantity of heat produced for the generation of elec-
tricity. In computing the amortization, no salvage value
is assumed for spent nuclear fuel.



2. Retirement Benefits
The Company has noncontributory retirement annuity
plans which cover substantially all employees. Benefits
are based principally on the employee's length of service
and compensation for the five highest paid years out of
the last ten years of service. It is the Company's policy
to fund the pension costs accrued each year to the ex-
tent deductible for federal income tax purposes. Net
periodic pension cost (benefit) for 1988, 1987 and 1986
totaled $ (4.1) million, $ (2.7) million and $8.4 million,
respectively.

In January 1987, the Company changed its method of
accounting for pension costs to conform with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employer's
Accounting for Pensions (SF<AS 87). The provisions of
SFAS 87 were applied prospectively and therefore pen-
sion costs for 1986 have not been restated.

Net periodic pension cost (benefit) for 1988 and 1987
included the following components:

1988 1987

(TI>ousands
ofDollars)

Service cost: Benefits earned
during the year

Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation

Actual return on plan assets
Net amortization and deferral

$ 10)475 $ 11,656

24,280 23,391
(68,405) (23,939)
29,519 (13,799)

Netperiodic pension cost(benefit) $ (4,131) $ (2,691)

The funded status of the plans at December 31, 1988
was:

(Tl>ousands
ofDollars)

Plan assets consist primarily of equity securities', cor- ..
porate bonds and U.S. Treasury bonds and notes.

For 1988 and 1987, the assumed discount rate and long-
term rate of increase in future compensation levels used
in measuring the projected benefit obligation was 8.0%
and 6.0%, respectively, while the expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets was 7.5%.

The PSC directed the Company to defer for future dis-
position any change in pension expense resulting from
the adoption ofSFAS 87 which had not yet been reflected
in the Company's electric and gas rates. The Company's
electric rates reflect the adoption of SFAS 87. However,
as of December 31, 1988, the Company has recorded a
deferred credit of approximately $4 million with respect
to its gas operations.

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company
provides certain postemployment benefits for retired
employees and their dependents. Substantially all of the
Company's employees who retire under a Company pen-
sion plan may become eligible for those benefits at retire-
ment. At December 31, 1988 and 1987, 1,674 and 1,622
retirees and their dependents were covered under the
Company's comprehensive health insurance plan (CHIP)
and prescription drug plan, which the Company self-
insures. The cost of providing those benefits to retirees
was approximately $2 million in 1988 and 1987.

Prior to 1987, the cost associated with providing post-
employment benefits to retirees and their dependents
was not separable from the cost of providing those bene-
fits to active employees. At December 31, 1986, 4,423
active employees and 1,456 retirees and their dependents
were covered under the Company's CHIP and prescrip-
tion drug plan at a cost of approximtely $8 million.

Actuarial present value of accumulated
benefit obligation:

Vested
Nonvested

$ 192,227
23,854

$ 21'6,081

Fair value of plan assets
Actuarial present value of projected

benefit obligation
Plan assets in excess of projected

benefit obligation
Unrecognized net transition asset
Unrecognized net (gain) loss
Unrecognized prior service costs

Unpaid pension liability included in
current liabilities

$ 481,481

321,342

160,139
(109,863)

(61,698)
4,200

$ (7,222)
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,.3. Federal Income Taxes
Federal income tax expense on income before cumulative eA'ect of accounting changes consists of:

1988 1987 1986

Charged to operations:
Current
Deferred —net:

Accelerated depreciation
Cost of reacquired debt
Income tax benefits from AFDC—Borrowed funds
Unbilled revenues
Miscellaneous

Investment tax credits deferred

44,189
3,396
5,179

(10,164)
928

1,453

50,605
(733)

18,883
(9,044)

(562)
25,979

42,896
493

30,108

(3,744)
39,268

(Thousands ofDollars)

$ 36,708 $ 25,227 $ 13,966

Included in other income:
Deferred taxes —Disallowed project costs
Other

81,689
737

(4,869)

110,355 122,987
(12,929)

(4,699) (4,648)
Total $ 77,557 $ 92,727 $ 118,339

The effective tax rates on income before cumulative effect of accounting changes differ from the statutory rates
(34% for 1988, 40% for 1987 and 46% for 1986) due to the following:

Tax expense at the statutory rate
Depreciation not normalized
AFDC
Disallowed project costs (Notes 10 and 11)
TRA 1986 deferrals
Investment tax credit amortization
Other—net

Total

(Thousands ofDollars)
$ 84,668 $ 57,951 $ 159,543

10,286 6,284 5,947
(4,608) (24,314) (35,030)
(1,584) 47,369
1,888 7,206

(6,500) (4,497) (3,374)
(6,593) 2,728 (8,747)

$ 77,557 $ 92,727 $ 118,339

mately $89 million, primarily representing previously
recorded excess deferred federal income tax credits re-
sulting from the reduction of the statutory corporate
federal income tax rate from 46% to 34%. Of this total,
approximately $70 million is being refunded over the life
of the related depreciable assets (approximately $4 mil-
lion was refunded during 1988). Of the remaining $ 19
million of excess deferred taxes recorded in 1987, approx-
imately $3 million was refunded in 1988 and approxi-
mately half of the remaining $ 16 millionwillbe refunded
in 1989.

In accordance with SFAS 96, the Company has recorded
deferred taxes and a corresponding receivable from cus-
tomers of approximately $449 million in 1987 and ap-
proximately $434 million in 1988 representing primarily
the cumulative amount of federal income taxes on tempo-
rary depreciation differences which were previously
flowed through to ratepayers. These amounts include the
tax efl'ect of the future revenue requirement and are be-
ing amortized over the life of the related depreciable
assets concurrent with their recovery in rates.

Although the Company calculates its deferred tax as-
sets and liabilities pursuant to SFAS 96, federal income
tax expense recorded of $77.6 million in 1988 and $92.7
million in 1987 reflects the federal income tax allowed
in the Company's cost ofservice for ratemaking purposes.
Had the provision for federal income tax expense been
calculated under SFAS 96, the provision would have been
approximately $87 million and $5 million in 1988 and
1987, respectively.

The Company has approximately $61 millionofunused
investment tax credits at December 31, 1988, which will
expire beginning in 2000.

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 (TRA 1986) was enacted
on October 22, 1986. Among other things, TRA 1986 pro-
vided for a reduction in the statutory corporate income
tax rates, the treatment of unbilled revenues as taxable
income, elimination of the investment tax credit as of
January 1, 1986, reduction of investment tax credit car-
ryforwards and changes in depreciation rates and lives.

On July 7, 1987, the PSC issued a Statement of Policy
on Accounting and Ratemaking Procedures to implement
the requirements of TRA 1986. This statement required
that the Company defer the impact ofTRA 1986 until the
benefits could be passed on to ratepayers. The Company
recorded payables to ratepayers of $7.2 million in 1987
and $ 1.9 million in 1988 representing primarily 1987
and 1988 excess federal income taxes resulting from the
reduction of the statutory corporate income tax rate to
40% in 1987 and 34% in 1988. The PSC incorporated the
provisions ofTRA 1986 into the Company's electric rates
effective January 1988 and gas rates effective February
1989.

In December 1987, the F<inancial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of F<inancial Accounting Stan-
dards No. 96, Accounting for Income Taxes (SFAS 96).
The Company adopted SFAS 96 in December 1987. This
resulted in a $22 million write-oA'of tax benefits associ-
ated with the disallowed project costs of NMP2 to the
statutory tax rate of 34% mandated by TRA 1986. This
write-off is reflected on the Company's Consolidated
Statement of Income for 1987 as the cumulative eAect of
an accounting change ($19 million)and as an adjustment
to the tax effect of disallowed project costs recorded ($3
million).

In addition, SFAS 96 required that the Company record
a payable to ratepayers as of December 1987 of approxi-
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4. Long-term Debt
At December 31, 1988, long-term debt was (Thousands of Dollars):
First mortgage bonds

Series Due Amount Series Due Amount

4%%
11 %%%uo

12 s/s%%uo":

14 I/s%%uo

8 %%%uo

8 s/s%%uo

5 s/s%%uo

6 '/4%
6 '/s%%uo

7 s/s%%uo

9.35%
9 s/s%%uo

May 1, 1991
Apr. 1, 1993
Jan. 1, 1994
July 1, 1994

Aug. 15, 1994
June 1, 1996
Jan. 1, 1997

Sept. 1, 1997
Sept. 1, 1998
Nov. 1, 2001
July 1, 2003
Mar. 1, 2005

$ 25,000
100,000
100,000
34,076

100,000
50,000
25,000
25,000
30,000
50,000
39,500
75,000

9 s/s%
7 '/4%
6 7/s%

8 5/s%

16 %%uo

12
12 '/s%
10 %%%uo

9 '/4%
9 %%u+AA

10 s/s%%uo"*

Jan. 1, 2006
June 1, 2006
Dec. 1, 2006
Nov. 1, 2007
July 1, 2014
July 1, 2015
Oct. 1, 2015
Feb. 1, 2016
Apr. 1, 2016
Mar. 1, 2017
Jan. 1, 2018

$ 50,752
12,000
25,750
60,000

1,173
100,000
75,000

125,000
50,000

100,000
100,000

Total first mortgage bonds

Pollution control notes

1,353,251

Interest
Rate

12
12.30%

6.1 %
5 '/4%
5
5.40%
6
6 '/4%
5 3/%%u~AQ

6 s/4%%uo*~

Maturity
Date

May 1, 2014
July 1, 2014
Dec. 1, 2014
Mar. 1, 2015

Mar. 15, 2015
July 15, 2015
Oct. 15, 2015
Dec. 1, 2015
July 1, 2026
Dec. 1, 2027

Interest Rate
Adjustment Date

Dec. 1, 1989
Mar. 1, 1989

Mar. 15, 1989
July 15, 1989
Oct. 15, 1989
Dec. 1, 1989
July 1, 1990
Dec. 1, 1991

Letter of Credit
Expiration Date

Dec. 15, 1990
Mar. 15, 1990
Mar. 31, 1990
July 31, 1990
Oct. 31, 1990
Dec. 15, 1990
July 15, 1990
Dec. 15, 1991

60,000
40,000
74,000
37,500
60,000
63,500
30,000
42,000
65,000
34,000

Total pollution control notes

9.50/o notes payable due August 27, 1989
SRC commercial paper due December 31, 1991
Participations due April 5, 1991 in mining company notes
Obligations under capital leases
Unamortized premium and discount on debt —net

Less debt due within one year —included in current liabilities

Total

506,000

50,000
33,600

5,725
40,598
(3,898)

1,985,276
161,128

$ 1,824,148

"Redeemed January 1989

At December 31, 1988, long-term debt which will be-
come due during the next five years is:

1989 1990 1991 1992 1993

(Thousands ofDollars)
$ 161,128 $ 12,645 $76,682 $ 11,196 $ 109,233

The Company's mortgage provides for a sinking and
improvement fund. The provision requires the Company
to make annual cash deposits with the Trustee equiva-
lent to 1% of the principal amount of all bonds delivered
and authenticated by the Trustee prior to January 1 of
that year (excluding any bonds issued on the basis of the
retirement ofbonds). The Company satisfied this require-
ment in 1988 by depositing $ 15.9 million in cash which
was used to redeem a portion of the 147/s% Series First
Mortgage Bonds.

Mandatory annual cash sinking fund requirements are
$3,000,000 for the 9s/s% series due 2006, $2,100,000 for
the 9.35% series, $600,000 beginning June 1, 2001 for
the 7'/4% series and $250,000 beginning December 1,

Issued 1988 "**Issued 1987

1992 for the 67/s% series. The amount increases to
$500,000 and $750,000 on December 1, 1997 and Decem-
ber 1, 2002, respectively, for the 67/s% series.

The Company's first mortgage bond indenture consti-
tutes a direct first mortgage lien on substantially all
utilityplant.

Adjustable rate pollution control notes were issued to
secure like amounts of tax-exempt adjustable rate pollu-
tion control revenue bonds (Revenue Bonds) issued by a
governmental authority. The Revenue Bonds bear inter-
est at the rate indicated through the date preceding the
interest rate adjustment date. The pollution control notes
bear interest at the same rate as the Revenue Bonds. On
the interest rate adjustment date and annually there-
after (every three years thereafter in the case of the
Revenue Bonds due July 1, 2026 and December 1, 2027),
the interest rate willbe adjusted, not to exceed a rate of
15%, or at the option of the Company, subject to certain
conditions, a fixed rate of interest, not to exceed 18%,
may become effective. In the case of the Revenue Bonds
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rate of interest becomes effective. Payments made under
the letters of credit in connection with purchases of Rev-
enue Bonds by the Trustee are repaid with the proceeds
from the remarketing of the Revenue Bonds. To the ex-
tent the proceeds are not sufficient, the Company is re-
quired to reimburse the bank that issued the letter of
credit.

SRC has a letter of credit backed commercial paper
program which provides for borrowing up to $40 million
through December 31, 1991. The weighted average inter-
est rate for 1988, including fees for the letter of credit,
amounted to 8.4%. Substantially all of the property of
SRC, other than rolling stock, is subject to a lien of a
mortgage and security agreement.

Shares
Authorized(1)

and Outstanding

Amount
(Thousands
of Dollars)Series

, .due Jtily 1, 2026 and December 1, 2027, at the option of
the Company, subject to certain conditions, a fixed rate
of interest may become effective prior to the interest rate
adjustment date or each third year thereafter. Bond-
owners may elect, subject to certain conditions, to have
their Revenue Bonds purchased by the Trustee.

The Company has irrevocable letters of credit which
expire on the letter of credit expiration dates and which
the Company anticipates being able to extend ifthe in-
terest rate on the related Revenue Bonds is not converted
to a fixed interest rate. These letters of credit support
certain payments required to be made on the Revenue
Bonds. Ifthe Company is unable to extend the letter of
credit that is related to a particular series of Revenue
Bonds, that series willhave to be redeemed unless a fixed

5. Preferred Stock
At December 31, 1988, serial cumulative preferred stock was:

Par Value
Per Redeemable

Share Prior to Per Share

3/1/91
Thereafter

2/1/94
Thereafter
10/1/93
Thereafter

258.48o/o

Adjustable Rate(2) 25

Total

Redeemable solely at the option of the Company:
3.75o/o $ 100
4 i/2% (1949) 100
4.15% 100
4.40% 100
4.15% (1954) 100
6.48% 100
8.80% 100

$ 104.00
103.75
101.00
102.00
102.00
102.00
103.94
102.00

26.23
25.70
25.75
25.00

150,000
40,000
40,000
75,000
50,000

300,000
250,000

1,000,000

1,800,000

$ 15,000
4,000
4,000
7,500
5,000

30,000
25,000

25,000

45,000

$ 160,500
Subject to mandatory redemption requirements:(5) (6) (7)

9.00% 100 10/1/89(3) 103.00 151,500 15,150
9.10% 25 7/1/89(4) 25.00 120,000 3,000

Less sinking fund requirements at par value —included in current liabilities
Total

18,150
4,650

$ 13,500

At December 31, 1988, redeemable preferred stock
sinking fund requirements during the next five years
are:

1989 19931990 1991 1992

(2) The Adjustable Rate Serial Preferred Stock, Series A,
was issued in September 1983. Dividends paid from
the date of issuance through the January 1, 1989
payment varied from 7'/2% to 12.95% per annum.
The payment for April 1, 1989 has been adjusted
to a rate of 8.75% per annum and subsequent pay-
ments can vary from 7'/2% to 13'/2% per annum,
based upon a formula included in the Company's
Certificate of Incorporation.
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(T/iousands ofDollars)
$4,650 $ 1,650 $ 1,650 $ 1,650 $ 1,650

(1) At December 31, 1988, there were 1,550,000 shares
of$ 100 par value preferred stock, 8,000,000 shares of
$25 par value preferred stock and 1,000,000 shares
of $ 100 par value preference stock authorized but
unissued.

(3) On October 1, in each year 1989 through 1995, the
Company must redeem at par 16,500 shares of the
9.00% Series. F~or the years 1986 through 1988,
16,500 shares were reacquired and canceled annu-
ally. The 9.00% Series is redeemable at $ 103.00 per
share prior to October 1, 1989. The $ 103.00 price
per share will be reduced annually by $ .50. As of
October 1, 1994 and thereafter, the redemption price
willbe at par. By September 30, 1996, the Company
must set aside the amount required to redeem at par
all shares outstanding.

(4) By July 1, 1989, the Company must redeem at par
the remaining 120,000 shares of the 9.10o/o Series.
The Company reacquired and canceled 120,000
shares in 1988, 1987 and 1986.

(5) In 1988, the Company reacquired and canceled the
remaining 200 shares of the 4.50% Series at a price
of $ 103.25 per share.



(6) In 1987, the Company redeemed 1,104,000 shares of (7) The Company redeemed 300,000 shares of the 15 /8%.
the 15% Series at a price of $27.50 per share and Series in 1986 at a price of $ 110.00 per share plus
96,000 shares at par. The premium paid on reacqui- accrued dividends. The premium paid on reacquisi-
sition was reported as a charge to retained earnings tion was reported as a charge to retained earnings
in 1987. in 1986.

6. Common Stock and Capital in Excess of Par Value
The following is a summary of changes in common stock and capital in excess of par value for 1988, 1987 and 1986:

Common Stock Capital in Excess
$6.66 ~/3 Par Value of Par Value

Shares Amount Amount

Balance at December 31, 1985
Public offering: 1986

1987
Dividend reinvestment and

stock purchase plan: 1988
Employee stock

ownership plans: 1986
1987

Reacquired capital stock: 1986
1987

54,006,974
32,100

1,467,900

967,025

22,123
204,389

6,447 15,340

147
1,363

574
4,156

417
1,285

(Thousands ofDollars)
$360,047 $501,523

214 850
9,786 33,258

Balance at December 31, 1988 56,700,511 $378,004 557,403

70,000,000 Shares authorized at December 31, 1988

7. Bank Loans and Other Borrowings
The Company has a revolving credit agreement with
banks which provides for borrowing up to $200 million
to July 31, 1992. At the option of the Company, the inter-
est rate on borrowings is related to the prime rate or the
London Interbank Offered Rate or the interest rate ap-
plicable to certain certificates of deposit. The agreement
also provides for the payment of a commitment fee on the
unborrowed amount of one-quarter of one percent per
annum.

The revolving credit agreement does not require com-
pensating balances. The Company did not have any out-
standing loans under this agreement at December 31,
1988 or 1987.

Interim financing in the form of short-term borrow-
ings, usually commercial paper, is utilized to finance cer-
tain refundings and construction expenditures.

Information relative to short-term borrowings is:
Commercial Paper

1988 1987 1986

(Thousands ofDollars)
$ 77,400 $ 16,000 $ 110,600Ending balance

Maximum amount
outstanding $ 134,100 $ 155,600 $ 141,400

Average amount
outstanding(1) $ 78,100 $ 31,000 $ 93,300

Weighted average
interest rate:
On ending balance 9.3% 7.5% 6.1%
During the period(2) 7.8% 6.3% 7.3%

(1) Calculated as the average of the sum of daily
outstanding borrowings.

(2) Calculated by dividing total interest expense by
the average of the sum of daily outstanding bor-
rowings.

8. Sale of Accounts Receivable
In November 1988, the Company entered into an agree-
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ment to sell, with limited recourse, undivided percentage
interests in certain of its accounts receivable from cus-
tomers. The agreement allows the Company to receive up
to $ 138.2 million from the sale of such interests through
November 14, 1993. Proceeds from the initial sale ofsuch
an interest in December 1988 totaled approximately
$ 103 million. AtDecember 31, 1988, Accounts receivable
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet is net of the $ 103 mil-
lion interest in accounts receivable sold. All fees associ-
ated with the program are being charged to operating
expenses-other on the Consolidated Statement of Income
and amounted to approximately $ 600,000 in 1988.

9. Jointly Owned Generating Stations
The Company has an undivided 50% interest in the out-
put and costs of three generating units comprising the
Homer City Generating Station. The station is owned
with Pennsylvania Electric Company (Penelec) which
operates the facility. The Company's share of the rated
capability is 955,000 kw and its net utilityplant invest-
ment is $260 million, which includes $ 6 million of con-
struction work in progress. The accumulated provision
for depreciation as of December 31, 1988 was $119 mil-
lion. The Company's share of operation and maintenance
expense of the station is reflected in the Consolidated
Statement of Income.

The Company entered into a contract for the supply of
coal to the Homer City Generating Station. By the terms
of the contract dated January 2, 1985, and subsequent
amendments, the Company and Penelec are obligated to
pay termination costs under certain conditions for a
period of 17 years. The Company's share of the obligation
at January 2, 1989 of $5.6 millionwould be reduced peri-
odically through 2001.

10. ¹ne Mile Point Unit No. 2
The Company has an undivided 18% interest in the
1,084,000 kw Nine Mile Point nuclear generating unit
No. 2 (NMP2) which was constructed and is being oper-
ated by Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (Niagara
Mohawk) near Oswego, New York. Ownership of NMP2



is shared with Niagara Mohawk 41%, Long Island Light-
mg Company 18%, Rochester Gas and Electric Corpora-
tion 14% and Central Hudson Gas & Electric Corpora-
tion 9%. AtDecember 31, 1988, the Company's net utility
plant investment in NMP2, excluding nuclear fuel, was
$727 million, which includes $5 million of construction
work in progress. The accumulated provision for depreci-
ation as ofDecember 31, 1988 was $ 14 million. The Com-
pany's share of operating and maintenance expenses is
reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

On October 1, 1988, NMP2 was taken out of service for
a scheduled maintenance outage. At that time, Niagara
Mohawk expected NMP2 to resume operation in December
1988. Subsequent to October 1, 1988, Niag'ara Mohawk
determined that replacement of a generator coupling was
required and that additional repairs were necessary on a
main steam isolation valve, generator retaining rings
and six valves in NMP2's residual heat removal system.
As a result of this additional work and subsequent test-
ing, NMP2 is expected to resume operation in March 1989.

In December 1988, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission
(NRC) categorized NMP2 as requiring close monitoring.
The NRC's conclusion was based upon its assessment of
the performance of NMP2 during its first year of opera-
tion. The NRC staff indicated that increased licensee and
NRC management attention was needed to ensure that
performance improvement is achieved at NMP2. The
Company is unable to predict what impact, if any, the
NRC's action may have on the future operation ofNMP2.

In a 1988 Niagara Mohawk rate proceeding, the PSC
staff determined that NMP2 achieved commercial opera-
tion for ratemaking purposes on April5, 1988. As a result
of this determination, in April 1988 the Company ad-
justed its 1987 NMP2 write-off to reflect the April 5,
1988,date. The 1987 write-offhad assumed that commer-
cial operation of NMP2 would not commence for rate-
making purposes until May 1, 1988. By adjusting the
1987 write-offto reflect the April 5 commercial operation
date, the Company increased 1988 earnings by approxi-
mately $6 million, net of the federal income tax effect.
The January 1989 rate stabilization agreement between
the Company and the PSC staff affirmed the April 5,
1988 commercial operation date for NMP2 ratemaking
purposes.

In 1987, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 90, Regulated Enterprises-
Accounting for Abandonments and Disallowances of
Plant Costs. This adoption resulted in the write-off of
$428 million, reduced to $322 million after recognition of
federal income tax benefits, of disallowed project costs
with respect to NMP2. The total disallowance was based,
among other things, on a May 1, 1988 commercial opera-
tion date, the $4.16 billion Offer and Cotenant Agree-
ment (as defined below) and determinations made by the
PSC in the Company's January 1988 electric rate deci-
sion and in Niagara Mohawk's March 13, 1987 rate deci-
sion pertaining to the implementation of the Offer. The
cotenants of NMP2 have appealed to the Supreme Court
of the State ofNew York (Albany County) the determina-
tions made by the PSC in the March 13, 1987 decision
pertaining to the implementation of the Offer. The pro-
ceeding was transferred to the Appellate Division (Third
Department). The Company is unable to predict the re-
sults of this proceeding.

The cotenants and the PSC staff are currently in dis-

agreement over the proposed ratemaking treatment of
certain NMP2 capital expenditures (primarily post-
operational). The PSC staff has contended that many of
those expenditures should be subject to the Offer and,
therefore, not recoverable through rates. In the August
30, 1988 Niagara Mohawk rate settlement agreement,
the PSC decided to conduct a separate proceeding follow-
ing the completion of NMP2's current maintenance out-
age. The Company is unable to predict to what extent, if
any, these expenditures willbe considered subject to the
Offer.

As a condition of the Offer, the tax benefits associated
with the disallowed costs of NMP2 have been reserved
for the stockholders. The PSC, however, has excluded
those benefits (approximately $59 million at December
31, 1988) from rate base recognition. Consequently,
future earnings will not reflect a return on those tax
benefits. This return would have been approximately $5
million for 1989 and a declining amount thereafter until
1996 when the tax benefits are expected to be fully
realized.

On April 17, 1987, the cotenants commenced an action
in the Supreme Court of the State of New York (Onon-
daga County), seeking damages of approximately $500
million from Gulf & Western, Inc., Crosby Valve & Gage
Company and Wickes Manufacturing Company. Those
companies designed and fabricated NMP2's eight main
steam isolation valves which were subsequently replaced
after problems were experienced in establishing

their'eak

integrity. The Company cannot predict whether this
suit willbe successful or the amount of damages, ifany,
which may be recovered.

On August 1, 1988, the cotenants commenced an action
in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of
New York against Stone & Webster Engineering Corp.
(Stone & Webster), ITT Fluid Products Corp. (ITT Prod-
ucts) and ITT Fluid Technology Corp. (ITT Technology).
Stone & Webster furnished architect-engineering and
construction management services for NMP2. ITT Prod-
ucts and ITT Technology are successor companies to ITT
Grinnell, a major piping contractor for NMP2. The suit
seeks damages in an unspecified amount for, among
other things, breach of contractual obligations, negli-
gence, and professional malpractice in connection with
defendants'erformance under their contracts which re-
sulted in delays and cost overruns. The Company cannot
predict whether this suit willbe successful or the amount
of damages, ifany, which may be recovered.

On January 26, 1989, the cotenants entered into an
agreement with General Electric Company (General
Electric) relating to certain disputes which arose in con-
nection with the Nuclear Steam Supply System (NSSS)
portion of the construction of NMP2, providing for settle-
ment, mutual releases, and confidentiality of the specific
elements of the agreement. The agreement provides that
General Electric will supply certain goods and services
to the cotenants over a period ofyears without cost or at
a reduced cost. Among other things, General Electric will
supply engineering services which will improve NMP2's
technical specifications and which may ultimately result
in increased capacity ofNMP2; software designed to help
avoid unplanned outages; other goods and services in
support of NMP2; and other goods and services relating
to turbine upgrading and maintenance at cotenants'en-
erating facilities.
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General Electric will receive indemnification from the
cotenants against any future judgments against General
Electric brought by other NMP2 contractors related to
the NSSS portion of the construction of NMP2, to the
extent such judgments result from successful cotenant
claims against the contractors.

While the Company does not believe the settlement is
material to its financial position, the Company regards
this as a favorable settlement. No part of the settlement
has been included in income pending determination by
the PSC of the allocation of the benefits thereof between
the Company's stockholders and its ratepayers.

On July 3, 1985, the PSC issued an order establishing
a proceeding to investigate the prudence of costs relating
to the construction of NMP2 (Prudence Proceeding). On
September 18, 1985, the cotenants and the PSC staff sub-
mitted to the PSC an Offer of Settlement (Offer) to settle
the Prudence Proceeding. The Offer provided that a max-
imum of $4.45 billion of costs relating to the construction
of NMP2 were to be included in rate base and disallowed
costs would not be less than $900 million.

On July 15, 1986, the cotenants, in response to a re-
quest by the PSC, notified the PSC that they would agree
to modify the Offer to provide for a change in the allow-
able cost to $4.16 billion. In addition, in order to in-
duce settlement among the cotenants, Niagara Mohawk
entered into an agreement with the other cotenants (Co-
tenant Agreement) whereby it would make a payment to
the cotenants, within 7 days of commercial operation of
NMP2 as recognized by the PSC, for their shares of the
$290 million incremental disallowance between the orig-
inal proposed allowed cost of $4.45 billionand the revised
proposed allowed cost of $4.16 billion. In September 1988,
the Company received its share of the Cotenant Agree-
ment payment ($52.2 million). This payment did'ot
cause a reallocation of ownership interests in NMP2.

On October 3, 1986, the PSC issued Opinion No. 86-24
approving the Offer, as modified by the $4.16 billion cost
allowance proposal, and terminating the Prudence Pro-
ceeding. On October 22, 1986, the Attorney General of
the State of New York and the Consumer Protection
Board of the State ofNew York (CPB) filed petitions with
the PSC requesting that the PSC reconsider the conclu-
sions reached in Opinion No. 86-24 and resume the Pru-
dence Proceeding. On December 17, 1986, the PSC issued
an order which denied the petitions for rehearing. On
April 16, 1987, the CPB, the Attorney General of the
State of New York and a member of the New York State
Assembly filed a petition in the Supreme Court of the
State ofNew York (Albany County) asking that the PSC's
Opinion No. 86-24 be annulled and that the PSC be di-
rected to conduct a full prudence investigation with re-
spect to NMP2. The proceeding was transferred to the
Appellate Division (Third Department). The Company
cannot predict the outcome of this proceeding.

The Company is unable to predict what further actions
or proceedings, ifany, may be instituted with respect to
NMP2.

ll.Abandoned Projects-
New Haven and Jamesport

Abandoned project costs represent the recoverable portion
of the Company's investment in two abandoned nuclear
generating projects, New Haven and Jamesport. Pursu-
ant to a 1984 PSC order, the Company is recovering 70%
of its investment in the New Haven project over a five

year period ending in April 1990. At December 31,
1988,'pproximately$10 million, net of the federal income tax

effect, of the allowable cost of New Haven remains un-
recovered.

In March 1982, the PSC authorized the Company to
continue accruing AFDC on its Jamesport investment
until the PSC rendered its decision with respect to the
prudence and disposition of the project costs. On March
23, 1987, the Company and the PSC staff agreed (Agree-
ment) to a recovery of 62.3% of the Company's Jamesport
investment as of December 31, 1986, which resulted in a
charge to expense in March 1987 of approximately $30
million, reduced to $25 million after recognition of the
federal income tax benefits. The Agreement also provided
for carrying charges on the recoverable portion of the
investment. On April 5, 1988, the PSC issued an order
approving the Agreement. The Company's January 1989
rate settlement agreement with the PSC staK provides
for the recovery of the allowable costs of Jamesport over
a 10 year period beginning in 1989. At December 31,
1988, the Company's recoverable investment in James-
port was $49 million, net of the federal income tax effect.

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Construction Program

The Company estimates that 1989 costs for its con-
struction program will approximate $221 million. The
program is subject to periodic review and revision, and
actual construction costs to be incurred may vary because
of revised load estimates, imposition ofadditional regula-
tory requirements and the availability and cost ofcapital.
Service Center Agreement

In 1986, the Company entered into two agreements for
the construction of two service center buildings in one of
its districts. The Company has agreed to lease each prem-
ises for'a period of seven years. The Company is making
payments equivalent to the interest costs on the debt in-
curred to purchase the land and construct the buildings.
The Company has the option to purchase either premises
at the end of the third, fourth, fifth, sixth and seventh
years of the respective lease and the lessors have the
right to require that the Company purchase the premises
at the end of the lease term.

In connection with the lease agreements, the Company
has guaranteed the debt incurred by the lessors in con-
structing the service center buildings. Should the lessors
default on the loans, the Company has several options,
one of which is to pay off the loans. The Company would
then acquire ownership of the affected premises. At
December 31, 1988, the total debt guaranteed by the
Company is approximately $21 million.
Fossil Fuel Procurement Audit

In November 1988, the PSC's UtilityOperational Audit
Section provided the Company with a draft report on the
Company's fossil fuel procurement function for the Homer
City Generating Station. The draft report alleges that
the Company's ratepayers will pay between $ 131.5 mil-
lion and $ 178.5 million in excess fuel costs over the life
of the Homer City Generating Station.

The Company believes that the fossil fuel procurement
function at the Homer City Generating Station has been
well managed. The Company filed comments with the
PSC staff which vigorously contest the allegations and
correct inaccuracies found in the report. The PSC staff is
considering the Company's comments and will submit a
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member facility exceed the accumulated reserves of
NEIL, each member, including the Company, would be
liable for its share of the deficiency. The Company's max-
imum liability under the property damage and replace-
ment power coverages is approximately $2.5 million.
Nuclear fuel disposal and nuclear plant
decommissioning costs

Niagara Mohawk has contracted with the U.S. Depart-
ment of Energy for the disposal of nuclear fuel. The
Company is reimbursing Niagara Mohawk for its 18%
share of the cost under the contract (currently $ 1.00 per
megawatt hour of net generation).

The Company has been informed by Niagara Mohawk
that its 18% share of the cost to decommission NMP2
is currently estimated to be $248 million. This assumes
that decommissioning of NMP2 will commence in 2027.
Included in the Company's 1989 electric rates is an an-
nualized allowance of $410,000 which is based on a PSC
estimate of $ 124 million for the Company's 18% share of
decommissioning NMP2 in 2027. The PSC has agreed to
reconsider its allowance for decommissioning costs in the
future should its estimate increase.

In June 1988, the NRC issued new regulations on the
funding of nuclear plant decommissioning costs. These
regulations require the use of an external trust fund and
accelerate previous funding requirements. The Company
must submit a formal funding plan to the NRC no later
than July 27, 1990. Although the Company's annual al-
lowance for decommissioning costs ($410,000) assumes
the use of an external trust fund, this allowance is not
expected to be suflicient to meet the NRC's requirements.
The Company believes, however, that any additional
costs associated with the funding of decommissioning
costs willultimately be recovered in rates.

erations of the Company is:

1987 1986

< final report to the PSC. The Company is unable to predict
what action, ifany, the PSC may take on its staff's final
report.
Nuclear Insurance

Niagara Mohawk maintains public liabilityand prop-
erty insurance for NMP2. The Company reimburses
Niagara Mohawk for its 18% share of these costs.

In August 1988, the President signed into law the
Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988 (Amendment)
which significantly increased the Company's potential
liability for a nuclear incident. The Amendment in-
creased the public. liabilitylimitfor a nuclear incident to
approximately $7.2 billion. Should losses stemming from
a nuclear incident exceed the commercially available
public liability insurance ($160 million), each licensee of
a nuclear facilitywould be liable for up to a maximum of
$63 million per incident, payable at a rate not to exceed
$ 10 million per year. The Company's maximum liability
for its 18% interest in NMP2 would be approximately
$ 11 million per incident. The $63 million assessment is
subject to periodic inflation indexing and a 5% surcharge
should funds prove insufficient to pay claims associated
with a nuclear incident. The Amendment also requires
indemnification for precautionary evacuations whether
or not a nuclear incident actually occurs.

Niagara Mohawk maintains nuclear property insur-
ance for NMP2. Through the Nuclear Insurance Pools,
Arkwright Mutual and the Nuclear Electric Insurance
Limited (NE<IL), Niagara Mohawk has procured property
insurance aggregating $ 1.6 billion. In addition, the Com-
pany has purchased NEIL insurance coverage for the
extra expense incurred in purchasing replacement power
during prolonged accidental outages. Under NEIL pro-
grams, should losses resulting from an incident at a

13. Industry Segment Information
Certain information pertaining to the electric and gas op

1988

E<lectric Gas Electric Gas
(Thousands ofDollars)

Electric Gas

Operating:
Revenues $ 1,191,806 $ 148)363 $ 1,136,799 $ 152,839 $ 1,098,089 $ 179,195
Expenses 878,794 133,856 868,545 139,875 836,471 159,728
Income 313,012 14,507 268,254 12,964 261,618 19,467

Depreciation": 129,518 4,519 106,401 4,278 96,804 3,992
Construction expenditures 190,129 16,519 170,943 13,974 220,275 10,617
Identifiable assets~~ 3,707,589 141,470 3,583,584 124,838 3,844,469 119,565
"Included in operating expenses.

"'~Assets used in both electric and gas operations ($844,218, $778,922 and $260,950 at December 31, 1988, 1987 and
1986, respectively) consist primarily of cash, special deposits, accounts receivable, prepayments, unamortized debt
expense, unfunded future federal income taxes and accumulated deferred income tax benefits.

14. Supplementary Income Statement Information
Charges for maintenance, repairs and depreciation, other than those set forth in the Consolidated Statement of
Income, were not significant in amount. Taxes, other than federal income taxes, are:

1988 1987 1986

Property
Franchise and gross receipts
Payroll
Miscellaneous

(Thousands ofDollars)
$ 70)823 $ 66,802 $ 62,245

55,398 55,442 53,960
13,158 12,283 11,583
6,630 6,080 5,840

Amounts charged to accounts other than taxes
Total other taxes
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146,009
(9,303)

$ 136,706

140,607
(11,831)

$ 128,776

133,628
(11,228)

$ 122,400



15. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)
Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
(Thousands —except per share data)

1988
Operating revenues
Operating income
Net income (1)
Earnings for common stock (1)
Earnings per share (1)
Dividend per share
Average shares outstanding
Common stock price:".

High
Low

1987
Operating revenues
Operating income
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of acco
Net income (loss) (2)
Earnings (loss) for common stock (2)
Earnings (loss) per share (2)
Earnings (loss) per share before cumulative

accounting changes (2)
Proforma earnings (loss) per share (3)
Dividend per share
Average shares outstanding
Common stock

price:"'igh

Low

unting cha

eFect of

nges (2)

, $ 360,805
$ 93,525
$ 65,533

, $ 62,089
$1.11

$ .50
55,878

$22s/4

$ 19'/z

$ 387,971
$ 92,240
$ (6,813)
$ (236,883)
$ (240,274)

$ (4.41)

$ (.19)
$ (.21)
$ .66

54,482

$33'/4
$27s/4

$331,546
$ 87,369
$ 48,078
$ 44,'/09

$ .80
$ .50

56,125

$24'/2
$21

$311,416
$ 74,655
$ 50,421
$ 50,421
$ 47,029

$.85

$ .85
$ .85
$ .66

55,529

$28'/s
$24'/z

$311,584
$ 77,016
$ 32,656
$ 29,297

$ .52
$ .50

56,356

$24'/4
$217/s

$293,988
$ 67,181
$ 42,910
$ 42,910
$ 39,508

$ .71

$ .71
$ .71
$ .66

55,529

$287/s

$ 25'/s

$336,234
$ 69,609
$ 25,200
$ 21,880

$ .39
$ .50

56,590

$24s/s
$22s/s

$296,263
$ 47,142
$ (34,185)
$ (34,185)
$ (37,662)

$ (.68)

$ (.68)
$ (.65)
$ .66

55,716

$28'/s
$20'/s

(1) Second quarter 1988 results reflect a NMP2 write-
oF adjustment which increased net income and
earnings for common stock by $6.1 million or $ .11 a
share. (See Note 10.)

(2) First quarter 1987 earnings reflect the write-offof
certain disallowed costs with respect to the Com-
pany's investment in NMP2 and the abandoned
Jamesport nuclear project and a change in account-
ing for income taxes. Those items reduced income
(loss) before cumulative eFect ofaccounting changes
by $82.6 million and net income (loss) and earnings
(loss) for common stock by $312.7 million or $5.74 a
share. (See Notes 3, 10 and 11.)

Fourth quarter 1987 earnings reflect the write-offof
additional disallowed costs with respect to NMP2,
the 1987 effect of a change in accounting for income
taxes and a write-off of $ 13 million (net of tax) of
excess earnings based on the PSC's January 1988
electric rate decision. Those items reduced income
(loss) before cumulative effect ofaccounting changes,
net income (loss) and earnings (loss) for common

stock by $69.1 million or $ 1.24 a share in the fourth
quarter of 1987.

(3) Assumes the 1987 accounting changes were applied
retroactively.

"The Company's common stock is listed on the New York
Stock Exchange. The number of stockholders of record
at January 25, 1989 was 66,689.

Dividend Limitations: After dividends on all outstanding
preferred stock have been paid, or declared and funds set
apart for their payment, the common stock is entitled to
cash dividends as may be declared by the Board of Direc-
tors out of retained earnings accumulated since Decem-
ber 31, 1946. Such dividends are limited ifCommon Stock
Equity (37% at December 31, 1988) falls below 25% of
total capitalization, as defined in the Company's Certifi-
cate of Incorporation. Dividends on common stock cannot
be paid unless sinking fund requirements of the preferred
stock are met. The Company has not been restricted in
the payment of dividends on common stock by these pro-
visions.
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Report of
Management

Report of
Independent Accountants

The Company's management is responsible for the prep-
aration, integrity and objectivity of the consolidated
financial statements, notes and other information in
this Annual Report. The consolidated financial state-
ments have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and include

estimates'hich

are based upon management's judgment and the
best available information. Other financial information
contained in this report was prepared on a basis con-
sistent with that of the consolidated financial state-
ments.

In recognition of its responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements, management maintains a system
of internal accounting controls which is designed to pro-
vide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reli-
ability of the financial statements, the protection of
assets from unauthorized use or disposition and the pre-
vention and detection of fraudulent financial reporting.
Management continually monitors its system of in-
ternal controls for compliance. The Company maintains
an internal audit department which independently as-
sesses the effectiveness of the internal controls. In addi-
tion, the Company's independent accountants, Coopers
& Lybrand, have considered the Company's internal
control structure to the extent they considered neces-
sary in expressing an opinion on the consolidated flinan-
cial statements. Management is responsive to the
recommendations of its internal audit department and
Coopers & Lybrand concerning internal controls and
corrective measures are taken when considered ap-
propriate. Management believes that as of December
31, 1988 the Company's system of internal controls pro-
vides reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reli-
ability of the consolidated financial statements.

The Board ofDirectors oversees the Company's finan-
cial reporting through its Audit Committee. This Com-
mittee, which is comprised entirely of outside directors,
meets regularly with management, the internal auditor
and Coopers & Lybrand to discuss auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters. To ensure their
independence both the internal auditor and indepen-
dent accountants have free access to the Audit Commit-
tee, without management's presence.

Cooners
8 Lybrand

cettifed public accountants

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors,
New York State Electric & Gas Corporation and

Subsidiary
Ithaca, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheets of New York State Electric & Gas Corpora-
tion and Subsidiary as of December 31, 1988 and 1987,
and the related consolidated statements of inc'ome,
retained earnings, and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1988. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Com-
pany's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes exam-
ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the con-
solidated financial position of New York State Electric
& Gas Corporation and Subsidiary at December 31,
1988 and 1987, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1988, in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes 3 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company and Subsidiary
changed their methods of accounting for income taxes
and disallowed project costs in 1987.

New York, New York
January 27, 1989

James A. Carrigg
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

g
Richard A. Jacobson
Executive Vice President and Chief P<i nancial Officer

~A'verett

A. Robinson
Controller and ChiefAccounting Officer
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Selected Financial Data

(Thousands —except per share data) 1988 1987 1986 1985 1984

Operating revenues

Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share

Dividends paid per share

Average shares outstanding

Book value per share ofcommon stock
(year-end)

Interest charges

AFDC and other non-cash return

Depreciation

Other taxes

Construction expenditures

Total assets

$ 1,340,169

$ 171,467*

$2.81*

$2.00

56,239

$20.71

$ 199,730

$ 28,788

$ 134,037

$ 136)706

$ 206,648

$4,693,277

$ 1,289,638

$ (177,737)"'(3

46)"'2.64

55,318

$ 19.85

$ 202,321

$ 108,128

$ 110,679

$ 128,776

$ 184,917

$4,487,344

$ 1,277,284

$ 228,494

$3.86

$2.60

54,014

$25.86

$ 199,258

$ 111,872

$ 100,796

$ 122,400

$ 230,892

$4,224,984

$1,241,780

$ 208,433

$3.46

$2.50

53,013

$24.65

$ 191,248

$ 122,719

$ 98,085

$ 113,587

$ 256,149

$3,976,619

$1,129,066

$ 211,376

$3.68

$2.38

49,955

$23.71

$ 176,085

$ 126,265

$ 65,198

$ 102,152

$ 349,718

$3,733,146

Long-term obligations and
redeemable preferred stock $ 1,837,648 $2,073,374 $ 1,951,227 $ 1,836,076 $ 1,663,784

"'Net income and earnings per share for 1987 would have been $ 191,052 and $3.21, respectively, excluding the
effects of the write-offof NMP2 and Jamesport disallowed costs and an accounting change for income taxes. Net
income and earnings per share for 1988 includes an adjustment to the 1987 NMP2 write-oK Excluding this write-
offadjustment, net income and earnings per share for 1988 were $ 165,377 and $2.70, respectively.

Cost of Debt Capitalization

11.0%
10.7%

10.0%
9.7% 9.6%

52.8%

8.7%

53.2%

7.5%

54.8%

6.1%

61.9%

5.4%

59.5%

5.3% I

38.5% 39.3% 39.1% 32.7% 35.2%

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988

Favorable economic conditions and the
Company's commitment to refinance high-
coupon debt have resulted in the Company
reducing its overall cost of debt by 13lo
since 1984.

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988

COMMON PREFERRED LONG TERM DEBT

Several actions taken by management during
1988 helped improve the Company's common
equity position which was adversely impacted
in 1987 by write-offs and an accounting
change recorded.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Liquidityand Capital Resources

During 1987, the Company recorded write-offs totaling
$369 million, net of the federal income tax effect. Ap-
proximately $322 million represented disallowed costs
associated with the Company's 18% interest in the Nine
Mile Point nuclear generating unit No. 2 (NMP2) which
was constructed and is being operated by Niagara Mo-
hawk Power Corporation (Niagara Mohawk) (See Note
10). In addition, the Company wrote-off $25 million of
costs associated with the abandoned Jamesport nuclear
project and $22 millionas a result of a change in account-
ing for income taxes. (See Notes 3 and 11.) The NMP2
write-off was based, among other things, on the plant
achieving commercial operation for ratemaking purposes
on May 1, 1988.

In a 1988 Niagara Mohawk rate proceeding, the staff
of the Public Service Commission of the State of New
York (PSC) determined that NMP2 achieved commercial
operation for ratemaking purposes on April 5, 1988. As
a result of this determination, in April 1988 the Com-
pany adjusted its 1987 NMP2 write-off to reflect the
April 5 commercial operation date. This adjustment in-
creased 1988 earnings by approximately $ 6 million, net
of the federal income tax effect.

In the August 30, 1988 Niagara Mohawk rate settle-
ment agreement, the PSC affirmed its staff's April 5,
1988 commercial operation date for NMP2. This resulted
in the Company receiving a $52.2 million payment from
Niagara Mohawk. The payment was made pursuant to
an agreement which Niagara Mohawk entered into with

the other cotenants of NMP2 to induce settlement with
respect to the'$4.16 billion Offer of Settlement approved
by the PSC. (See Note 10.)

The commercial operation of NMP2 brought to an end
the Company's construction program for significant new
generating capacity. Capital expenditures for the three
year period ended December 31, 1988 totaled $831 mil-
lion. A large portion of these expenditures related to the
Company's 18% interest in NMP2 ($356 million). With
the additional generating capacity from NMP2 and the
forecasted generation from independent power producers,
the Company estimates that additional generating capac-
ity willnot be required until the mid-1990's.

Estimated construction expenditures for 1989 through
1991 are included in the graph below. Those expendi-
tures will be primarily for the extension of service and
for efficiency improvements at existing generating facil-
ities. The Company continually monitors its construc-
tion forecast and revisions are made when considered
appropriate.

The quality of the Company's earnings (measured as
the percentage of cash earnings to total earnings) has
significantly improved since the commercial operation of
NMP2. Although overall earnings per share (excluding
the 1987 write-offs and accounting change and the 1988
write-ofl'adjustment) decreased from $3.21 per share in
1987 to $2.70 per share in 1988, cash earnings increased.
Cash earnings were 84% of income for common stock for
1988 compared with 50% of income for common stock in
1987. This trend is expected to continue as no major con-
struction projects are anticipated in the near future.

Construction Program MiLLioNsOF l)QLLARS Cash Earnings

84.5%

451

332 333

270 31.4%
33.0%

46.3%
49.7%

228 221 220
228

1984 1985 1986 19874 1988*

CASH EARNINGS NON-CASH EARNINGS
*Excludes the 1987 write-offs and 1988 write-off
adjustment

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991

IVith the completion of NMF2, construction expenditures willbe
significantly lower than in prior years.

Cash earnings have greatly improved since
the commercial operation of NMP2.
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The commercial operation of NMP2 and the inclusion
of its recoverable costs in electric rates were also the
major contributing factors in the decision by two invest-
ment rating agencies (Moody's Investor Service and Duff
Er, Phelps, Inc.) to upgrade the Company's securities rat-
ings. The higher ratings should enable the Company to
obtain more favorable interest rates in future financings.

The write-offs and accounting change recorded in 1987
had a significant impact on the Company's financial con-
dition. Common equity, which had been approximately
39% of total capitalization in 1986 decreased to under
33% in 1987. As a result of this decrease, several actions
were taken during 1988 which were designed to help the
Company regain its financial strength and lower its over-
all cost of debt.

In January 1988, the Company's Board ofDirectors re-
duced the quarterly common stock dividend to 50 cents
a share. This represented a 24% reduction from the pre-
vious quarterly rate of 66 cents a share. The lower divi-
dend rate provided an additional $36 million in retained
earnings during 1988.

The following high-coupon First Mortgage Bonds were
redeemed during 1988 and early 1989:

$ 100 million, 13%% Series due 2012
~ $ 50 million, 17/s% Series due 1989
~ $ 50 million,'75/s% Series due 1990
~ $ 15.9 million, 147/s% Series due 1994
~ $ 100 million, 12s/s% Series due 1994 (redeemed

January 1989)

Those redemptions were funded through the issuance
of $ 100 million of First Mortgage Bonds, 10%% Series,
due 2018, commercial paper and $ 103 million from the
sale of an undivided percentage interest in certain of the
Company's accounts receivable. The Company entered
into an agreement to sell undivided percentage interests
in its accounts receivable in November 1988. (See Note 8.)

In January 1988, the Company through its Dividend
Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (Plan) began
issuing new shares of common stock. In 1987 and 1986,
Plan shares were purchased on the open market. This
change increased stockholder's equity by $22 million in
1988.

The change in the Plan, coupled with the dividend re-
duction, certain first mortgage bond redemptions and the
sale of an undivided percentage interest in certain of the
Company's accounts receivable helped increase the Com-
pany's common equity ratio to over 35% at December 31,
1988 and to over 36% after the January 1989 first mort-
gage bond redemption noted above. Management intends
to continue its efforts to improve the Company's financial
condition and reduce the overall cost of debt.

In F'ebruary 1988, the Company retired $25 million of
3/8% First Mortgage Bonds, at maturity, through the is-
suance of commercial paper.

In December 1988, the Company issued a $34 million
adjustable rate pollution control note with an initial
three-year interest rate of 6'/4%. The proceeds from the
note were used to reimburse the Company for previously
incurred pollution control expenditures at NMP2.

Uses of Funds:
Construction

Cash Expenditures
AF<DC

Total

Working Capital
and Deferrals

Retirement of Securities
and Sinking Fund
Obligations

Total

$214 $212 $221 $647
7 8 7, 22

221 220 228 669

(36) 33 44 41

199 7 65 271

$384 $260 $337 $981

Sources of Funds:
Internal Sources $242
Sale ofAccounts Receivable 35
Long-term Financing 73
Increase (Decrease) in

Short-term Debt 34 (10) 25 49

$270 $278 $790
35

34 107

Total $384 $260 $337 $981

The Company estimates that internal sources will be
sufficient to fund its three-year construction program.

The Company uses interim financing in the form of
short-term unsecured notes, usually commercial paper,
to finance certain refundings and construction expendi-
tures, thereby providing flexibility in the timing and
amounts of long-term flnancings. The Company had
$77.4 millionofcommercial paper outstanding at Decem-
ber 31, 1988.

The Company has a revolving credit agreement with
certain banks which provides for borrowing up to $200
million to July 31, 1992. At the option of the Company,
the interest rate on borrowings is related to the prime
rate or the London Interbank Offered Rate or the inter-
est rate applicable to certain certificates of deposit. The
agreement also provides for the payment of a commit-
ment fee on the unborrowed amount ofone-quarter ofone
percent per annum. The revolving credit agreement does
not require compensating balances. The Company did
not have any outstanding loans under this agreement at
December 31, 1988.

In January 1989, the Company and the PSC staff
agreed on a stabilization plan which would maintain the
Company's base electric and gas rates at current levels
through January 1991. The agreement provides, among
other things, a 13% return on common equity, a 10 year
recovery period for the allowable costs of the abandoned
Jamesport nuclear project and, for ratemaking purposes,
an April 5, 1988 commercial operation date for NMP2.
Earnings in excess of the allowed 13% return on common
equity would be shared equally between the Company's
ratepayers and stockholders. The PSC is expected to ap-
prove the rate stabilization agreement in March 1989.

The following table provides certain data concerning
the Company's estimated sources and uses of funds for
1989-1991.

1989 1990 1991 Total
(MillionsofDollars)



'RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Earnings

For the year ended December 31, 1988, the Company
recorded earnings for common stock of $ 158 million or
$2.81 a share. These earnings include an adjustment
made in April 1988 to the 1987 NMP2 write-off. Exclud-
ing this write-offadjustment, earnings were $ 152 million
or $2.70 a share.

In 1987, as a result of write-ofls relating to NMP2 and
Jamesport and a change in accounting for income taxes,
the Company recorded a, loss for common stock of $ 191
million or $3.46 a share. Excluding the effect of the
write-offs and accounting change, earnings were $ 177
million or $3.21 a share.

The 16% decrease in earnings (excluding the 1987
write-offs and accounting change and the 1988 write-off
adjustment) from $3.21 a share in 1987 to $2.70 a share
in 1988 reflects primarily the PSC's reduction of the al-
lowed return on common equity from 15.5% to 13.8% in
January 1988. The effect on 1988 earnings of the lower
allowed return was partially offset by strong retail elec-
tric sales and cost containment. The average number of

shares outstanding increased slightly as a result of the
Company's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase
Plan.

Earnings for common stock of $3.21 a share (excluding
the write-offs and accounting change} for 1987 repre-
sented a 17% decrease from 1986 when the Company re-
ported earnings of $3.86 a share. This decrease reflected
lower allowance for funds used during construction
(AFDC) on NMP2 as a result of the write-offs recorded in
1987 and higher operating and maintenance costs. These
items were partially offset by lower preferred stock divi-
dends as a result of the redemption of the 15% Series pre-
ferred stock in early 1987. The average number of com-
mon shares outstanding increased slightly in 1987 as a
result of the public offering of approximately 1.5 million
shares of common stock.

Operating Revenues
Operating revenues increased 4% in 1988 compared

with the prior year after increasing 1% in 1987. Signifli-
cant factors affecting electric and gas revenues for 1988
and 1987, when compared to the prior years, follow:

1988 over 1987 1987 over 1986
(Thousairds ofDollars)

Electric Gas Electric Gas
Rate increase
Fuel cost adjustment
Electricity sales to other utilities
Deferred revenues —NMP2 (net)
Surcharge for (passback of) interchange profits
Amortization (Deferral) of 1987 excess revenues
Sales volume and other

$
27,118

(19,669)
(14)035)
(34,475)
41,694
54,374

$
(14)024)

9,548

$22,170
(4,202)
13,746

(4,053)
(24,030)
35,079

$
(7,431)

(18,925)
Total

Since 1986, the Company's base gas rates have re-
mained constant. The Company's latest electric rate
increase, a 7% increase effective in April 1986, reflected
the final rate increase associated with the three-year
phase in ofSomerset Generating Station costs ofapproxi-
mately $ 1 billion.

The January 1988 PSC rate decision provided that the
Company defer revenues associated with the recovery of
NMP2 costs until NMP2 achieved commercial operation
for ratemaking purposes. As a result of this provision,
the Company deferred approximately $25 million of
NMP2 revenues prior to April5, 1988 (the PSC's assumed
commercial operation date for NMP2 ratemaking pur-
poses). Since April 5, 1988 the Company has been re-
quired by the PSC to defer variations in NMP2 operation
and maintenance expenses above or below forecasted
amounts. These variations were deferred and offset
against the previous NMP2 revenue deferrals. AtDecem-
ber 31, 1988 the Company had approximately $ 14 million
of deferred NMP2 revenues.

In the January 1988 rate decision, the PSC also deter-
mined that the Company's revenues for 1987 were exces-
sive by approximately $24 million. The Company reduced
its 1987 revenues and recorded a liability to its rate-
payers for these excess revenues. This adjustment re-

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Total Retail
Other

Utilities
Total

5% 5% 2% 6%
6 5 4 4
5 4 4 2
5 5 3 4

(9) (18) 21 14
1 5 7 4

The increase in retail electric sales and revenues for
1988 and 1987 reflects, in part, a 2% increase in retail
electric customers in both 1988 and 1987. Electricity
usage in 1988 also increased as a result of an unusually
hot summer. The Company set a new record summer
peak load during 1988 which surpassed the previous
record summer peak, set in 1987, by over 5%.

$ 55,007 $ (4,476) $38,710 $ (26,356)

duced earnings by $ 13 million in 1987. During 1988, the
Company refunded approximately $ 18 million of the ex-
cess revenues.

The percentage increase (decrease) in electric unit
sales and revenues by major customer category compared
with the prior year are as follows:

1988
Unit
Sales Revenues
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Sales to other utilities decreased during 1988 primarily
as a result of the increased electricity demands of the
Company's retail customers and increased price competi-
tion in the wholesale market. The increase in sales to
other utilities in 1987 reflected increased generation and
rising oil prices which enabled the Company's coal-fired
plants to become more cost competitive with oil-fired
plants of other utilities.

The percentage increase (decrease) in gas unit sales
and revenues by major customer category and the trans-
portation ofcustomer-owned gas compared with the prior
year are as follows:

1988 1987
Unit Unit
Sales Revenues Sales Revenues

7% (3) /o
4 (5)
3 (8)

88 81 35

Operating Expenses
In total, operating expenses remained stable during

1988 aAer increasing 1% in 1987.
Fuel expense increased 2o/o during 1988 as a result of

a 7o/o increase in electricity generated offset, by greater
generating efficiencies and a higher proportion of nuclear
generated electricity which is less costly than coal gener-
ated electricity. In 1987, fuel expense had increased 5%
reflecting a 14o/o increase in generation offset by a 7~lo

decrease in the unit cost of fuel and greater generating
efliciencies.

Operating expenses —other and depreciation increased
10/o and 21%, respectively, during 1988 primarily as a
result of NMP2 commencing commercial operation. Oper-
ating expenses —other also increased as a result of in-
creased costs associated with the Company's energy con-
servation program. In 1987, depreciation increased 10%
compared with the prior year as a result of the reclassifi-
cation of New Haven amortization from operating ex-

Residential (2) /o (6) /o
Commercial (7) (12)
Industrial (41) (43)
Total Gas

Sales 4 (5) (12) (15)
Transporta-

tion of
Customer-
Owned Gas 31

Total Gas
Delivered 9 (3) (3) (15)

Despite increases in gas sales to retail customers dur-
ing 1988, the related revenues decreased. This decrease
reflects primarily the passback to customers of lower
purchased gas costs. During both 1987 and 1988, the
transportation of customer-owned gas increased as a re-
sult of more customers, primarily industrial, purchasing
gas directly from producers. The significant fluctuation
in revenues associated with the transportation of cus-
tomer-owned gas in both 1988 and 1987, when compared
to unit sales, reflects an accounting adjustment in De-
cember 1987. Prior to December 1987, the Company had
been deferring revenue losses associated with former
retail customers purchasing gas directly from producers.
However, as a result of the PSC determining that such
losses would not be recoverable, the Company wrote-off
the losses in December 1987 (approximately $ 1.6 million).

penses —other. Despite this reclassification, ope'iating
expenses —other increased 7% during 1987 due, in part,
to increases in customer service and insurance costs off-
set by lower pension costs as a result of the adoption of
Statement of F<inancial Accounting Standards No. 87,
Employers Accounting for Pensions. (See Note 2.)

Electricity purchased decreased 34o/o in 1988. This
decrease resulted primarily from increased Company
generation as a result of the commercial operation of
NMP2.

Purchased gas costs decreased 9o/o and 18% during
1988 and 1987, respectively. These decreases reflect a
lower unit cost for gas (12o/o and 9% for 1988 and 1987,
respectively) and fluctuations in gas sales as noted above.

F<ederal income tax expense decreased 26o/o during
1988. This decrease reflects the reduction in the statutory
federal income tax rate from 46% (the tax rate included
in the Company's 1987 electric and gas rates) to 34o/o,

lower taxable income and certain IRS audit; adjustments.
In 1987, federal income tax expense decreased 10% when
compared with the prior year largely as a result of lower
taxable income.

After remaining fairly stable during 1987, taxes other
than income taxes increased 6~lo during 1988. This in-
crease was due primarily to property taxes relating to
NMP2.

Non-operating Income
Disallowed project costs for 1987 reflect the portion

of NMP2's disallowance which related to 1987 events,
$ 121.6 million, and $30 million for the abandoned James-
port project. The related tax benefits are included in the
tax effect of disallowed project costs recorded. For 1988,
disallowed proj ect costs and the tax effect of disallowed
project costs recorded reflect an adjustment to the NMP2
disallowance which increased earnings by approximately
$6 million, net of the federal income tax effect.

As a result of the commercial operation of NMP2,
AFDC, excluding the imputed tax benefits, decreased
75% during 1988. In 1987, AFDC decreased 11~lo pri-
marily as a result of the NMP2 write-offs. In total, AFDC
and non-cash return, excluding the imputed tax benefits
($5 million, $ 19 million and $30 million for 1988, 1987
and 1986, respectively), amounted to approximately 16%,
50% and 54o/o of earnings for common stock (excluding
the 1987 write-offs and accounting change and the 1988
write-offadjustment), for the years 1988, 1987 and 1986,
respectively.

Interest E<xpense
Interest expense, before the reduction for AFDC bor-

rowed funds, decreased slightly during 1988 after in-
creasing 2o/o in 1987. The increase in other interest
expense during 1988, offset by lower long-term debt
interest, reflects the Company's redemption of several
high-coupon first mortgage bonds through the issuance
of commercial paper. The increase in interest on long-
term debt during 1987 resulted primarily from additional
construction financing.

The impact of inflation and changing prices on rev-
enues and earnings (loss) for common stock was not
material during the period from 1986 through 1988.
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Financial and Operating Statistics
Summary of Earnings
Operating Revenues

Electric
Gas

1988

$ 1,191,80G
148)3G3

1987

$ 1,136,799
152,839

198G 1985 1984

(Dollars in Thousands)
$1,098,089 $1,051,579 $ 921,248

179,195 190,201 207,818

1983

$785,723
207,866

1978

$463,062
98,397

Total 1,340,169 1,289,638 1,277,284 1,241,780 1,129,066 993,589 I 561,459

Operating Expenses
Operation —fuel—other
Electricity purchased
Gas purchased
Maintenance
Depreciation
Federal income tax recorded
Other taxes

253,326
214)541

19,432
82,822
90,097

134,037
81,689

136,706

249,520
195,204
29,638
90,974
93,274

110,679
110,355
128,776

238,371
182,710
29,302

111,147
88,486

100,796
122,987
122,400

280,397
167,923
35,984

129,809
81,591
98,085
96,651

113,587

227,998
141,056
69,206

146,040
68,606
65,198
78,144

102,152

187,148
128,986
66,575

160,415
61,234
56,799
67,891
90,604

118,384
74,465
48,347
63,896
38,529
41,462
16,350
57,064

Total 1,012,650 1,008,420 996,199 1,004,027 898,400 819,652 j 458,497

Operating Income
Other Income and Deductions

Allowance for other funds
used during construction

Non-cash return—utilityplant in service—abandoned projects
Abandoned project costs
Federal income tax

credit recorded
Income tax benefits from

AFDC and non-cash return
Disallowed project costs
Tax effect ofdisallowed

project costs recorded
Other—net

Income Before
Interest Charges

327,519

10,961

3,081

4,8G9

6,827

(737)
3,931

35G,451

281,218

55,777

5,039

4,699

(151,648)

12,929
(672)

207,342

281,085

63,168

9,868
5,906

4,648

30,108

39

394,822

237,753

50,263

40,185
6,682

570

2,544

32,256

3,839

374,092

230,666

68,145

22,002
9,283

(11,026)

3,435

29,814

8,307

360,626

173,937

57,895

8,927

3,417

23,449

1,608

269,233

102,962

10,659

4,071

4,312

202

122,206.

Interest Charges
Interest on long-term debt
Other interest
Allowance for borrowed funds

used during construction

187,304
12,426

(14,746)

195,264
7,057

(47,312)

187,238
12,020

178,985
12,263

164,435
11,650

130,488
G,884

52,337
5,302

(32,930) (25,589) (26,835) (24,819) (5,996)
Interest charges —net 184,984 155,009 166,328 165,659 149,250 112 553 I 51 643

Income Before
Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Changes
Cumulative effect for years

prior to 1987 of accounting
change for disallowed
project costs (less applicable
taxes of $95,434)

Cumulative effect for years
prior to 1987 of accounting
change for income taxes

Net Income (Loss)
Preferred Stock Dividends
Earnings (Loss) Available for

Common Stock
Common Stock Dividends
Retained Earnings

Increase (Decrease)

Average number of shares
ofcommon stock outstanding
(thousands)

Earnings (Loss) per
average share

Dividends paid per share

171,4G7

171,4G7
13,492

157,975
112,252

$ 45,723

5G,239

$2.81

$2.00

52,333

(210,914)

(19,156)

(177,737)
13,662

(191,399)
145,794

$ (337,193)

55,318

$ (3 46)
$ 2.64

228,494

228,494
20,104

35

54,014

$3.86
$2.60

208,390
140,432

$ 67,958

208,433

208,433
25,226

183,207
132,018

$ 51,189

53,013

$3.46

$2.50

211,376

211,376
27,370

184,006
118,058

$ 65,948

49,955

$3.68

$2.38

156,680

156,680
23,466

133,214
98,155

$ 35,059

43,530

$3.06

$2.26

70,563

70,563
13,090

57,473
38,732

$ 18,741

23,393

$2.46
$ 1.68



Financial Statistics

Financial Statistics:
Return on average common

stock equity—percent
Percentage non-cash earnings

of total earnings
Mortgage bond interest—

times earned
Interest charges and preferred

dividends —times earned
Book value per share of

common stock (end ofyear)
Market value per share of

common stock (end ofyear)
Dividend payout ratio (percent)
Price earnings ratio

(end ofyear)
Property, Plant and Equipment:

Electric
Gas
Common

1988 1987

13.2* 12.2* 15.3 14.3 15.9

15.5 50.3 53.7 67.0 68.6

2.6 1.6

1.7 1.2

$20.71 $ 19.85

2.9

$25.86

2.9

1.8

$24.65

3.0

1.9

$23.71

$22.75
74.1**

$20.88
82.2*"

6.5**

$31.38
67.4

8.1

$28.63
72.3

8.3

$23.00
64.7

6.3

$4,089,485 $3,885,989
189,580 176,019
129,860 100,252

$4,129,838 $3,828,220
164,426 154,675
78,781 72,494

$3,526,3G4
147,120

60,775

1986 1985 1984
(Dollars in T1>ousnnds)

1983 1978

13.5

68.8

2.7

1.8

$22.75

$20.13
73.9

6.6

11.8

29.0

1.8

$20.78

$ 16.88
68.3

6.9

$3,109,469 $ 1,659,928
142,072 117,168
49,115 40,584

Total $4,408,925 $4,1G2,260 $4,373,045 $4,055,389 $3,734,259 $3,300,656 $1,817,680

Accumulated Depreciation $ 956,415 $ 855,198 $ 769,336 $ 687,472 $ 617,687 $ 563,118 ( $ 376,933

Capitalization:
Long-term debt
Preferred stock
Common stock equity

$ 1,985,276 $2,091,678 $ 1,959,089 $1,803,469 $ 1,691,3G7 $ 1,331,981
178,650 183,320 217,970 252,620 277,300 278,950

1,174,028 1,106,518 1,39'I,962 1,331,231 1,234,561 1,103,655

$ 721,347
176,375
533,406

Total capitalization $3,337,954 $3,381,516 $3,575,021 $3,387,320 $3,203,228 $2,714,586 i $ 1,431,128

Capitalization Ratios (percent):
Long-term debt
Preferred stock
Common stock equity

Number of Stockholders:
Common stock
Preferred stock

Payroll (including pensions, etc):
Charged to operations $
Charged to construction

and other accounts

59.5
5.3

35.2

61.9 54.8
5.4 6.1

32.7 39.1

53.2 52.8
7.5 8.7

39.3 38.5

49.1
10.3
40.6

50.4
12.3
37.3

66,G89
4,444

70,441
4,583

71,935
6,060

79,013
6,364

81,258
6,380

82,982
6,607

64,579
6,503

G1,808 54,276 55,936 57,075 56,573 53,422 40,179

132,G17 $ 134,484 $ 126,307 $ 118,711 $ 108,707 $ 101,235 $ 58,186

Total $ 194,425 $ 188,760 $ 182,243 $ 175,786 $ 165,280 $ 154,657 ) $ 98,365

Number of employees
end ofyear 4,494 4,498 4,423 4,360 4,347 4,378 4,215

*Return on average common stock equity for 1987 excludes the effects of the write-offofNine Mile Point nuclear generating unit
No. 2 (NMP2) and Jamesport disallowed costs and the accounting change for income taxes, as discussed in Notes 3, 10 and 11 to
the consolidated financial statements. The return on equity for 1988 excludes the NMP2 write-offadjustment.

**Excludes the 1987 write-offs and accounting change and the 1988 NMP2 write-offadjustment. (See Notes 3, 10 and 11.)



Electric Sales Statistics

Kilowatt hour (Kwh) Sales (millions):
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Public authorities

1988

5,148
3>OG9

3,159
1,400

1987

4,905
2,882
3,018
1,372

1986

4,791
2 772
2,899
1,345

1985

4,615
2,678
2,811
1,301

1984

4,575
2,611
2,832
1,269

1983

4,398
2,536
2,691
1,231

1978

4,297
2,438
2,632
1,125

Subtotal
Other electric utilities

12>77G 12,177
3,896 4,295

11,807
3,545

11,405
5,021

11,287
3,158

10,856
1,429

10,492
1,417

Total 16,G72 16,472 15,352 16,426 14,445 12,285 I 11,909

Operating Revenues (thousands):
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Public authorities

$ 507,428 $ 483,531
257,707 244,416
198,344 190,806
113,576 110,846

$ 457,132 $ 401,345 $365,331 $335,284
235,246 201,654 190,891 169,537
187,372 160,089 156,680 133,007
109,181 93,180 86,400 75,490

$ 197,024
103,192
81,332
45,679

Subtotal
Other electric utilities
Other operating revenues

1,077,055 1>029,599
89,784 109,453
24,9G7 (2,253)

988,931
95,707
13,451

856,268
171,073
24,238

799,302
107,209

14,737

713,318
58,239
14,166

427,227
29,726

6,109
Total operating revenues $1,191>806 $ 1,136>799 $ 1,098,089 $1>051>579 $921>248 $785>723 ( $463>062

Operating Revenues per kwh (cents):
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Public authorities

Subtotal
Other electric utilities

9.8G
840
G.28
8.11

8.43
2,30

9.8G
8.48
6.32
8.08

8.46
2.55

9.54
8.49
6.46
8.12

8.38
2.70

8.70
7.53
5.70
7.16

7.51
3.41

7.99
7.31
5.53
6.81

7.08
3.39

7.62
6.69
4.94
6.13

6.57
4.08

4.59
4.23
3.09
4.06

4.07
2.10

Average revenue per kwh 7.15 7.15 6.40 6.38 640 I 389

Number of Customers (end ofyear):
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Other

665,29G 653,398 640,094 628,864 619,116 G11,298
67,488 65,923 64,603 63,324 62,089 60,873

1,437 1,411 1,388 1,387 1,385 1,338
10,556 10,363 10,5 1G 10,391 10,221 10,039

582,449
55,618

1,293
9,278

Total 744,777 731,095 716,601 703,966 692,811 683,548 ) 648,638

Annual Average Use (kwh):*
Residential
Commercial
Industrial (thousands)

7,791 7,569 7,538 7,387 7,4 2G 7,223
45,GOO 43,787 42,935 42,261 42,035 41,772

2,22G 2>134 2,081 2,024 2,079- 2,019

7,422
43,751

2,028

Annual Average BillP
Residential
Commercial
Industrial

"Computed using the weighted average number ofcustomers for the year.

$ 768 $ 746 $ 719 $ 642 $ 593 $ 551
3,829 3,713 3,644 3,182 3,073 2,793

139,777 134,941 134,510 115,255 115,037 99,780

$ 340
1,852

62,659



Electric Operating Statistics

Production Data:
System Capability (megawatts):

Net generating capability:
Coal fired
Nuclear
Hydro
Diesel

1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983

2,405 2,386 2,366 2,366 2,376 1,733
194

G7 68 68 64 60 56
7 7 7 7 7 10

1978

1,728

38
14

Total
Purchased —Power Authority—Other

2,G73
510

2,461
509

2,441
563

2,437
621

2,443 1,799
683 680

300

1,780
712
100

Total system capability 3,183* 2>970 3>004 3>058 3>126 2>779 i 2>592

Annual Load Factor (percent)
Coal Burned (thousands of net tons)
Coal Heat Value (Btu per lb.)
Btu per Kwh Generated (net)
Kwh Production —net (millions):

Generated:
Coal fired
Nuclear
Hydro

Total generated

Purchased —Power Authority—Other

63.5 65.5 66.3 64.4 G7.3 64.4
G,10G 5,956 5,334 6,051 5,126 4,666

12,572 12,487 12,335 12,309 12,202 12,033
9,881 9,897 9,959 10,093 10,562 10,552

15,589 15,025 13,196 14,769 11,850 10,641
G39 60
245 280 338 242 246 213

16,473 15,365 13,534 15,011 12,096 10,854

1,743 1,911 2,590 2,315 2,980 2,023
45 583 464 491 650 714

63.6
4,430

11,141
10,744

9,161

189

9,350

2,934
833

Total

Production Expenses (thousands):
Generated
Purchased

Total

18,2G1 17,859 16,588 17,817 15,726 13,591 I 13,117

$351,9G3 $332,250 $318,885 $353,265 $287,299 $237,309 $148,285
19,432 29,G38 29,302 35,984 69,206 66,575 48,348

$371,395 $361,888 $348,187 $389,249 $356,505 $303,884 I $ 196,633

Costs per Kwh (mills):
Generated
Purchased
Operating expense (excl. production)

21.37 21.62 23.56 23.53 23.75 21.86
10.87 11.88 9.59 12.82 19.07 24.32
9.65 9.79 9.85 8.46 7.97 8.60

15.86
12.83

5.24

Total

Electric Operation and Maintenance
Expenses (thousands):
Production
Transmission
Distribution
Customer accounting
Customer service
Administrative and general

Total

29.99 30.05 30.05 30.31 30.64 30.95 i 20.23

$371,395
22,19G
49,737
21,522
20,527
62,258

$361,888
24,314
55,673
20,158
12,047
62,660

$348,187
22,438
49,522
19,220

8,867
63,328

$389,249
23,450
46,120
18,255

7,005
55,868

$356,505
16,093
42,494
17,824

G,149
42,783

$303,884
13,382
39,111
16,603
5,221

42,508

$ 196,633
8,171

22,644
9,467
2,887

25,537

$547 G35 $536 740 $511 562 $539 947 $481 848 $420 709 l $265 339

*The Company entered into several contracts for the sale of 125 megawatts from November 1, 1988 through April30, 1989.
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Gas Department Statistics

Dekatherm (dth) Sales (thousands):
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Other

Subtotal

Transportation of customer-owned gas

Total

Operating Revenues (thousands):
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Other

Subtotal

Transportation ofcustomer-owned gas

1988

14,818
7'056
3,121
2,242

27,23G

7,825

35,0G1

$ 83,115
35,GSO
12,821
11,224

142,840

5,623

1987

13,897
G,803
3,038
2,499

26,237

5,959

32,196

$ 85,242
37,G20
13,909
13,137

149,908

2,931

198G

14,139
7,343
5,126
3 373

29,981

3,287

33,268

$ 91,068
42,711
24,429
18,819

177,027

2,1GS

1985

13,G52
7,392
7,790
3,547

32,381

1,92G

34,307

$ 88,677
42,952
37,734
19,917

189,280

921

1984

14,120
7,761
9,817
3,G91

35,389

35,389

$ 92,288
45,403
49,087
21,040

207,818

1983

13,857
7,514
9,296
3,718

34,385

34,385 I

$ 92,974
44,980
49,217
20,G95

207,866 i

1978

18,386
8,654
8,651
3,638

39,329

39,329

$ 50,642
20,908
18,252
8,595

98,397

Total operating revenues $ 148,3G3 $ 152,839 $ 179,195 $ 190,201 $207,818 $207,866 i $ 98,397

Operating Revenues per dth:
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Other

Average revenue per dth

Number of Customers (end ofyear):
Residential with house heating
Residential without house heating
Commercial with space heating
Commercial without space heating
Industrial
Other

$ 5.Gl
5.0G
4.11
5.01

$ 5.24

111,543
8,340

1G,419
1,444

343
1,347

$ G.13
5.53
4.58
5.26

$ 5.71

108,515
8,220

16,2G5
1,408

400
1,351

$ 644
5.82
4.77
5.58

$ 5.90

106,00G
8,28G

1G,221
1,417

399
1,213

G.50
5.81
4.84
5.62

$ 5.85

104,487
8,323

16,074
1,40G

413
1,179

$ 6.54
5.85
5.00
5.70

5.87

103,513
8,533

15,93G
1,402

403
1,141

$ 6.71
5.99
5.29
5.57

$ 6.05 ) $

103,040
8,740

15,602
1,455

387
1,130

2.75
2.42
2.11
2.36

2.50

97,915
11,971
12,828

1,226
366

1,186

Total 139,43G 13G,159 133,542 131,882 130,928 130,354 125,492

Annual Average Use (dth):*
Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Annual Average BillP
Residential
Commercial
Industrial

Cost ofNatural Gas Purchased:
Amount (thousands)
Per dth

125
398

8,G94

120
387

7,614

$ 703
2,012

35 713

$ 738
2,139

34,860

$ 82,822 $ 90,974
3.02 3.43

125
419

12,G57

$ 803
2,437

60,319

$ 111,147
3.75

122
426

19,04G

126
451

24,GGG

$129,809
3.87

$ 14 G,040
4.09

$ 790 $ 826
2,47G 2,G39

92,259 123,334

124
449

24,272

833
2,689

128,504

$ 1G0,415
4.52

1G8
619

23,321

462
1,495

49,197

$ 63,896
1.62

Gas Operation and Maintenance
Expenses (thousands):
Production
Transmission and distribution
Customer accounting
Customer service
Administrative and general

$ 83,165
11,712

4,G07
3,362
9,758

$ 91,369
11,570
4,656
2,374

11,901

$ 111,638
11,013

4,085
2 227
9,589

Total $112,5S4 $ 121,870 $ 138,452

~Computed using the weighted average number ofcustomers for the year.

$ 130,269
10>224
3,977
1,779
9,508

$ 155,757

$146,401
9,651
4,043
1,580
9,383

$ 171,058

$ 160,928
8,908
3,783
1,328
8,703

$ G4,089
6,775
1,988

479
4,952

$ 183,650 ) $ 78,283
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